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MASON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

WARREN COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARDS EXPENDITURES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2003

Federal Grantor/ Pass Through Federal
Pass Through Grantor Entity CFDA Non-Cash Non-Cash
Program Title Number Number Receipts Receipts Disbursements Disbursements
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
Passed Through Ohio Department of Education:
Nutrition Cluster:
Food Distribution Program None 10.550 $164,904 $152,827
National School Lunch Program LL-P4-02 10.555 21,875 21,875
LL-P4-03 154,673 154,673
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture - Nutrition Cluster 176,548 164,904 176,548 152,827
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Passed Through Ohio Department of Education:
Special Education Cluster:
Special Education Grants to States
IDEA Part B 6B-SF-01/02/03 84.027 323,739 394,402
Autism Grant 6B-SA-02 14,400 14,400
Raising Expectations 6B-SD-02 15,000 1,720
Preschool Disability Grant PG-S1-02 84.173 18,002 18,002
Total Special Education Cluster 371,141 0 428,524 0
Grants to Local Educational Agencies
(ESEA Title I) C1-S1-02/03 84.010 56,194 59,733
Title VI-R CR-S1-02 84.340 0 5,930
Eisenhower MS-S1-02 84.281 0 216
Title II-A, Improving Teacher Quality TR-S1-03 84.367 41,451 41,451
Title V, Innovative Programs C2-S1-02/03 84.298 36,744 37,224
Title IV-SDFSC DR-S1-02/03 84.186 11,058 21,082
Title 1I-D, Technology Fund TJ-S1-03 84.318 353 0
School Renovation, IDEA & Technology AT-S1-02 84.352A 0 4,956
School Renovation, IDEA & Technology AT-S3-02 84.352A 12,617 12,617
Passed through the Great Oaks Institute &
Career Development
Carl Perkins/Vocational Education None 84.049 14,609 14,419
Total U.S. Department of Education 544,167 0 626,152 0
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Passed Through Ohio Department of Education:
Refugee and Entrant Assistance Discretionary Grant None 93.276 3,000 0
TOTAL FEDERAL ASSISTANCE $723,715 $164,904 $802,700 $152,827




MASON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
WARREN COUNTY

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARDS EXPENDITURES
JUNE 30, 2003

NOTE A--SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying Schedule of Federal Awards Expenditures (the Schedule) summarizes activity of the
Government’s federal award programs. The schedule has been prepared on the cash basis of
accounting.

NOTE B—CHILD NUTRITION CLUSTER

Program regulations do not require the Government to maintain separate inventory records for purchased
food and food received from the U.S. Department of Agriculture. This nonmonetary assistance
(expenditures) is reported in the Schedule at the fair market value of the commaodities received.

Cash receipts from the U.S. Department of Agriculture are commingled with State grants. It is assumed
federal monies are expended first.



Auditor of State
Betty Montgomery

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Mason City School District
Warren County

211 North East Street
Mason, Ohio 45040

To the Board of Education:

We have audited the financial statements of the Mason City School District, Warren County, Ohio (the
District), as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, and have issued our report thereon dated
January 23, 2004, in which we noted that the District adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement 34. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed an instance of noncompliance that is required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards, which is described in the accompanying schedule of findings as item
2003-001. We also noted certain immaterial instances of noncompliance that we have reported to
management of the District in a separate letter dated January 23, 2004.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the District’s internal control over financial reporting in
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. However, we
noted a certain matter involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we
consider to be a reportable condition. Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our attention
relating to significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control over financial reporting
that in our judgment could adversely affect the District’s ability to record, process, summarize and report
financial data consistent with the assertions of management in the financial statements. The reportable
condition is described in the accompanying schedule of findings as item 2003-001.

250 W. Court St. / Suite 150 E / Cincinnati, OH 45202
Telephone: (513) 361-8550 (800) 368-7419 Fax: (513) 361-8577
www.auditor.state.oh.us
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Mason City School District

Independent Accountants’ Report on Compliance and on
Internal Control Required by Government Auditing Standards

Page 2

A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control
components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be
material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a
timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. Our
consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in
the internal control that might be reportable conditions and accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all
reportable conditions that are considered to be a material weakness. However, we believe the reportable
condition described above is not a material weakness. We also noted other matters involving the internal
control over financial reporting that do not require inclusion in this report, that we have reported to
management of the District in a separate letter dated January 23, 2004.

This report is intended for the information and use of the management, Board of Education and federal

awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

770(7@1 M/wfz,rm/w{

Auditor of State

January 23, 2004
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Mason City School District
Warren County

211 North East Street
Mason, Ohio 45040

To the Board of Education:
Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Mason City School District, Warren County, Ohio (the District), with the
types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular
A-133, Compliance Supplement that are applicable to its major federal program for the year ended June
30, 2003. The District's major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and
grants applicable to its major federal program is the responsibility of the District's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the District’'s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
occurred with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material
effect on a major federal program. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the
District's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the District’'s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that
are applicable to its major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2003.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the District's internal control over
compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to
test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

250 W. Court St. / Suite 150 E / Cincinnati, OH 45202
Telephone: (513) 361-8550 (800) 368-7419 Fax: (513) 361-8577
www.auditor.state.oh.us
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Mason City School District

Warren County

Independent Accountants’ Report on Compliance with Requirements
Applicable to Each Major Federal Program and Internal Control
Over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133

Page 2

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the
internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the
design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low
level the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants
that would be material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected
within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We
noted no matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be
material weaknesses.

Schedule of Federal Awards Expenditures

We have audited the basic financial statements of the District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2003,
and have issued our report thereon dated January 23, 2004, wherein we noted the District adopted
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement 34. Our audit was performed for the purpose of
forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying schedule of
federal awards expenditures is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB Circular
A-133 and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

This report is intended for the information and use of management, the Board of Education, and federal
awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

Tty Iwtgmsny

Betty Montgomery
Auditor of State

January 23, 2004



MASON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
WARREN COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
OMB CIRCULAR A -133 §.505
JUNE 30, 2003

1. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

(d)(1)(i) Type of Financial Statement Opinion Unqualified
(d)(1)(ii) Were there any material control
weakness conditions reported at the No
financial statement level (GAGAS)?
(d)(1)(ii) Were there any other reportable
control weakness conditions Yes
reported at the financial statement
level (GAGAS)?
(d)(1)(iii) Was there any reported material non-
compliance at the financial statement | Y©S
level (GAGAS)?
(d)(1)(iv) Were there any material internal
control weakness conditions No
reported for major federal programs?
(d)(1)(iv) Were there any other reportable
internal control weakness conditions | NO
reported for major federal programs?
(d)(1)(v) Type_of Major Programs’ Compliance | ynqualified
Opinion
(d)(1)(vi) Are there any reportable findings No
under § .510?
(d)(1)(vii) Major Programs (list): Special Education Cluster: CFDA#
84.027 and 84.173
(d)(1)(viii) Dollar Threshold: Type A\B Programs | Type A: > $ 300,000
Type B: all others
(d)(1)(ix) Low Risk Auditee? Yes

2. FINDINGS RELATED TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GAGAS

FINDING NUMBER 2003-001

Material Noncompliance / Reportable Condition

Ohio Rev. Code, Section 3315.062 (B), state that if more than fifty dollars a year is received through a
student activity program, the moneys from such program shall be paid into an activity fund established by
the board of education of the school district. The board shall adopt regulations governing the
establishment and maintenance of such fund, including a system of accounting to separate and verify
each transaction and to show the sources from which the fund revenue is received, the amount collected
from each source, and the amount expended for each purpose. Expenditures from the fund shall be

subject to approval of the board.




Mason City School District
Warren County

Schedule of Findings
Page 2

FINDING NUMBER 2003-001
(Continued)

Fees for student activity programs in excess of fifty dollars were collected by the Mason Band Boosters.
The unaudited Mason Band Boosters financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2003 disclosed
$70,502 in fees collected for such programs as concert band and marching band, and reported expenses
related to those programs in excess of the fees collected.

Our review of the unaudited Mason Band Boosters financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2003
identified additional issues:

. The financial statements disclosed “Other Income” of $102,784 and “Other Expenses” of $84,018.
These categories may also contain fees and expenses that should be accounted for in accordance
with Ohio Rev. Code, Section 3315.062 (B).

. It appears that amounts were paid by the Mason Band Boosters for personnel: $18,798 for
marching band support staff; and $6,600 for winter guard staff. The District should review these
payments to ensure compliance with pension payment requirements, and federal and state
withholding and reporting requirements.

The District should require that all students pay activity fees in excess of fifty dollars into a student activity
fund; the Board should adopt regulations covering the establishing; maintenance and accounting of such
funds; and the Board should approve all expenditures from the fund.

3. FINDINGS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS

None.



MASON CITY SCHOOLS

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

For the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2003

“Where Each Student Is Important”

MASON, OH







MASON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MASON, OHIO
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

For the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2003

Prepared by:
Treasurer’s Office




This Page is Intentionally Left Blank.



Mason Ciry School District
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
For the Year Ended June 30, 2003

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Page
INTRODUCTORY SECTION
Letter of Transmirtal 1
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting VI
Organizational Chart Vi
List of Principal Officials VIl
FINANCIAL SECTION
Independent Accountants' Report 1
Management's Discussion and Analysis 3
Basic Financial Statements:
Govemment-wide Financial Statements:
Statement of Net Assets 11
Statement of Activities 12
Fund Financial Statements:
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds 14
Reconciliation of Total Governmental Fund Balances to Net Assels of Governmental Activirties 15
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 14
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities 17
Statement of Net Assets - Proprietary Funds 18
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets - Proprietary Funds 19
Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds 20
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets - Fiduciary Funds 21
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets - Fiduciary Funds 22
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 23
Required Supplementary Information:
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) - General Fund 48
Notes to the Required Supplementary Information 33
Combining Statements and Individual Fund Schedules:
Nonmajor Governmental Funds:
Combining Balance Sheet 56
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 57
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds:
Combining Balance Sheet 38
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 62




Mason City School District
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
For the Year Ended June 30, 2003

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Nenmajor Capital Projects Funds:
Combining Balance Sheet
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
MNonmajor Enterprize Funds:
Combining Statement of Net Asscts
Combining Statement of Revenues, Fxpenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Agency Fund;
Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities

Individual Fund Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance-
Budgel and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis):
Public School Support
Community Services
District Managed Student Activity
Auxiliary Services
Career Development
Management Information System
OneNet Network Connectivity
SchoolNet Professional Development
Ohio Reads
Safe School Help Line
School Conflict Management
Eisenhower
Title VI-B
Vocational Education
Refugee Impact
Title I
Title VI
Drug-Free Schools
Public School Preschool
E-Rate
Improving Teacher Quality
Continuous Improvement
Debt Service
Capital Projects
Building
SchoolNet Plus

PHEE

66
67

68
69
70

71

72
T3
73
76
77
78
50
g1
82
83
84
85
B
87
88
]
80
91
o2
83
04
o3
96
97
98



Mason City School District
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
For the Year Ended June 30, 2003

TABLE OF CONTENTS

STATISTICAL SECTION

General Fund Expenditures by Function

General Fund Revenues by Source

Property Tax Levies and Collections

Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property

Property Tax Rates - Direct and Overlapping Governments

Ratio of General Obligation Bonded Debt to Assessed Value and Bonded Debt per Capita

Computation of Legal Debt Margin

Computation of Direct and Overlapping General Obligation Bonded Deht

Ratic of Annual Debt Service Expenditures for General Obligation Bonded Debt to
Total General Fund Expenditures

Demographic Statistics

Property Value, Financial Institution Deposits, and Building Permits

Principal Taxpayers Real Estate

Principal Taxpayers Tangible Personal Property

Principal Taxpayers Public Utility Personal Property

Cost to Educate a 2002 Graduate

Miscellaneous Statistical Data

Largest Employers

Levy History

Student Population by Sex and by Race

Schedule of Insurance Policies and Bonding Insurance

Enrollment History

Directory of School Facilities

Finance Diepartment

Table Paﬁ
1 100
2 102
3 104
4| 105
5 106
3] 107
T 108
8 1ne
o 110
10 111
11 112
12 113
13 114
14 115
15 116
16 117
17 118
I8 119
19 120
20 121
21 122
22 123
23 124



Introductory
Section




MASON CITY SCHOOLS

Treasurer’s Office
211 North East Street ® Mason, Ohio ® 45040
Phone: (513) 398-3623 e Fax: (513) 398-4357

January 23, 2004
To the Citizens and Board of Education of the Mason City School District:

Stale law requires that school districts publish a complete set of financial statements presented in
conformance with generally accepted accounting principals (GAAP) and audited in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards by the Auditor of State or a firm of licensed certified public
accountants, Pursuant to that requirement, we hereby issue the comprehensive annual financial report of

Mason City School District for the fiscal vear ended June 30, 2003.

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the Mason City School
District.  Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of
all of the imformation presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these
representations, management of the Mason City School District has established a comprehensive internal
control framework that is designed both to protect the school district’s assets from loss, theft or misuse
and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the Mason City School District’s
financial statements in conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not
outweigh their benefils, the Mason City School District’s comprehensive framework of internal controls
has been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will
be free from material misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects.

The Mason City School District’s financial statements have been audited by the Auditor of State. The
goal of the independent audil was to provide assurance that the financial statements of the Mason City
Schoal Distriet for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, are free of material misstatement. The
independent audit involved examining, on a test hasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statemenls; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made hy
management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor
concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion
that the Mason City School District’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 20032, are
fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first
component of the financial section of this report.

The independent audit of the financial statements of the Mason City School District was part of a
broader, federally mandated “Single Audit™ designed 1o meet the special needs of federal grantor
agencies. The standards governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report
not only on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited school distriet’s
internal conirols and compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on intemnal controls and
legal requirements involving the administration of federal awards. These reports are available in the
Mason City School District’s separately issued Single Audit Report.




GAAFP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview and analysis fo accompany
the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This
letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The
Mason City School District MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the independent
auditors.

Profile of the School District

The District is located in Warren and Butler Counties in southwest Ohio. The District contains 25 square
miles, with 99% of its territory located in Warren County and the remaining 1% in Butler County.
Political subdivisions included in the District are the City of Mason, portions of Deerficld, Union and
Turtle Creek Townships in Warren County, and a portion of West Chester Township in Butler County.
The District is approximately 235 minutes northeast from downtown Cineinnati and 35 minutes southeast
of downtown Dayion.

The Board of Education of the Mason City School District is a five member body palitic and corporate,
as defined by Section 3313.02, Ohio Revised Code. The Board serves as the taxing authority, contracting
body, policy maker, and ensures that all other general laws of the State of Ohio are followed in the
expenditure of the District’s tax dollars, and approves the annual appropriation resolution.

The current Board members. their terms and vears on the Board as of June 30, 2003, are:

Board Member Current Term Total Years
Mr. Kevin Wise Now, 2002 - Dec, 2003 /2
Mrs. Marianne Culbertson Jan. 2002 - Dec. 2005 9-1/.2
Mr. David Lenert Jan. 2002 - Dec. 2005 9-1/2
Mr. Eric Kantor lan. 2000 - Dec, 2003 3-1/2
Mrs. Connie Yingling Jan. 2002 - Dec. 2005 3-3/4

The Superintendent is the chiel executive officer of the District and is responsible directly 1o the Board
for all operations of the District. Dr. Kevin L. Bright was appointed Superintendent effective August 1,
1998 and his current contract expires July 31, 2006,

The Treasurer and CFO is the chief financial officer of the District and is directly responsible to the
Board for all financial operations, investments, custody of all District funds and assets, and serves as
Secretary to the Board. Mr. Richard L. Gardner was initially appointed Treasurer efTective May 1, 2000.
and his current contract will expire on December 31, 2006.

The District provides a full range of traditional and non-traditional educational programs, services and
facilities. These include elementary and secondary curriculum offerings at the general and college
preparatory levels: a broad range of co-curricular and extra curricular activities: special educaticn
programs and facilities and community recreation facilities,

In addition to these general activities, the District acts as the fiscal agent for state funds distributed to
non-publie chartered schools located within the District boundaries. The District serves St Susanna.
Little Leprechaun Academy, The Child’s Place Montessori, Royalmont Academy and Liberty Bible
Academy in this category. While these organizations are similar in operations and services provided.
they are distinct and separate entities, These State subsidies are therefore presented as special revenue
funds within this report.




The District served 8,003 students during the 2003 fiscal year in eight buildings. The senior high school
(9-12) was constructed in 2002. The middle school (7-8) was constructed in 1959, with additions in
1967, 1980, 1987 and 1997, The intermediate school 45 building (4-5) was constructed in 1994, The
intermediate school 56 building (5-6) was constructed in 1998, Western Row Elementary School (2-3)
was constructed mn 1962, with additions in 1987. Mason Heights Elementary School (1-2) was
constructed 1 1967, with additions in 1978 and 1987. Mason Early Childhood Center (K) was
constructed in 1911, with additions in 1936, 1950, 1953 and 1955 and with renovations in 1977, The
Mason Heights Annex (Preschool) was constructed in 1973, with additions in 2001. The central
administration is also housed in the same facility as the Mason Early Childhood Center.

The District employed 1,104 full-time and part-time employees as of June 30, 2003, The number of
employees has been increasing due to the increase in student population. Since 1986 the District’s
enrollment has increased from 2,292 to the current enrollment of 8,003, 1t is expected that the District’s
enrollment will be approximately 8700 for fiscal year 2004 and will continue to increase through 2010,

The District teachers, educalional specialists, tutors and counselors are represented by the Mason
Education Association (MEA). A three year agreement on language, salary and fringe benefits was
ratified on October 19, 2001. This agreement will expire on June 30, 2004. The agreement provides
MEA members with 5.0 percent base salary inerease for the 2003-2004 school vear, bringing the hase
teaching salary to $32,406.

The District’s non-certified staff, administrators, directors and supervisors are currently not represented
by a union. These classifications typically receive the same benefits extended to the MEA.,

Factors Affecting Financial Condition

The information presented in the fnancial statements is perhaps best understood when it is considered
from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the Mason City School District
operales.

Local Economy. The City of Mason has a population of 22,016 and is growing steadily through
planning and development. The District is served by Sprint Telephone and Cincinnati Gas and Electric
Company. The Mason Pulse Journal, Community Press and The Western Star newspapers regularly
cover District events, The District is also served by newspapers, radio and television stations in both
Cincinnati and Dayton, Major universities easily accessible from the District are the University of
Cincinnati and Xavier University in Cincinnati, Miami University in Oxford, and Wright State
University and the University of Dayton, both in Dayton.

The Mason City School Disirict currently enjoys a favorable economic environment and local indicators
point to continued growth, The region has a varied manufacturing and industrial base that adds to the
relative stability of the unemployment rate, which has averaged significantly less than the United States
and State and State of Ohio averages in recent years. The City of Mason and Deerfield Township target
high tech companies, corporate headquarters and light industry for the District’s business community.
The diverse business base is home to national and international blue chip corporations’ headquarters and
divisions that include a major health care research center, uniforms manufacturer and distributor,
insurance, automotive component manufacturers, condiments, electronics, software and technology
companies and institutions.
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It is estimated that approximately 15% of the land area within the district remains available for
development, and it is projected that these areas will continue to be developed over the next five 1o ten
years with the associated additional nvestments in plant and equipment and increasing job opportunities.

Long-term financial planning. Student enrollment growth will continue to be a priority for the Board
and Administration. Demographic projections indicate the District could see its population grow to
11,500 in the next ten years, The District uses a process that solicits community input to help determine
how to meel the facility needs of the District. Community input was sought regarding whether to add a
secomd high school, future elementaries and the configuration of grade levels. The results of the
community dialogue sessions indicated that it was a desire of the community to have ene high school and
to maintain as much as practical, grade specific elementary schools.

The District utilizes a continuous improvement process. A committee of parents, students, and
community members meets regularly 1o address issues such as; What do we want for our students? What
makes a high quality education? How do we reach success? Tt is the goal of the group to create a culture
of continuous improvement in the District.

Cash management policies and practices. The District operates a cash management program designed
to provide safety, liquidity and yield in that order. Funds are invested in cettificates of deposit, in the
Chio State Treasurer’s Investment Pool (Star Ohio), U.S. Treasury and Agency Notes and Bonds, US
Treasury Bills, repurchase agreements, commercial paper and mutual funds. The amount of inlerest
income in fiscal year 2003 for all District funds was $528,558. A more detailed description of the
District’s investment functions is provided in Note 4 to the financial statements.

Risk Management. The District maintains protection for its assets and employees through a
comprehensive insurance program. Insurance policies for vehicle fleet liability, general liability,
property loss and boiler and machinery coverage are purchased from insurance companies licensed to do
business in the State of Ohio. The maximum deductible amount for these coverages is $5,000 per loss
incurred,

The District pays the State Worker's Compensation System a premium based on a rate per $100 of
salaries. This rate is calculated based on accident history and administrative costs.

The District provides health, dental, optical and life insurance to all regular employees who work 20 or
more hours per week. Effective September 1, 1994, new employees share the cost of the monthly
premium with the Board. The premium varies depending on the terms of the negotialed agreement with
teachers and Board Policy.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Mason City School District for
its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002. In order to be awarded
a Certificale of Achievement a governmental unit must publish an casily readable and efficiently
organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted
accounting principles and applicable legal requircrments.

A Certificate of Achievement is vabid for a period of one year only., We believe that our current
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meel the Certificate of Achievement Program’s
requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

IV




The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the efficient and dedicated services
of the entire staff of the Treasurer’s Office and Plattenburg and Associates, Incorporated. Credit must
also be given to the Board of Education for their unfailing support for maintaining the highest standards
of professionalism in the management of the Mason City School District’s finances.

Fespectiully submitted,

ol A Bl

Richard 1. Gardner
Treasurer and CFQO




Certificate of
Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

Mason City School
District, Ohio

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 2002

A Certificate of Achievement [or Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial reporting.
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President

By

Executive Director

VI




_____ l.]-.n..u.]lr._ ﬁ
- EL STy m
v e % e
Ty i) Peen ] | ey Pt i
= = = B |
smmipTTay 8iHE T
i
=]

MY B

VI

12L0EN] (002§ K11 WOSEY §0 SUDTN

JHVHI TV NOLLY ZINY DO




MASON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

LIST OF PRINCIPAL OFFICIALS
AS OF JUNE 30, 2003

ELECTED OFFICIALS

Erscrdent. Boaid o Edueaiion e e e

Vice President, Board of Education ........cciieeisi

BOATd IVFETIIDET ....voeerrsenenssnnssesssmsasassustorss onmessn mms ses ies ros bessss kot e s cress
A e I L i e o e i o S

Board Member .....ooovviis

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICIALS

Eric Kantor
Connie Yingling

Marianne Culbertson

David Lenert
Kevin Wise

‘Qupm !T!tE]'l{]G[]l'

Assistant Super micndmi C umculum and l[lsiruchun

Assistant Superintendent - Business ............

Assistant Superintendent - Human Resources ........coooeeiecvee....
RS AT oA SR o T e v e T R
Pupil Petsonnie] THrectonr . it ot ditieiass it imessnenaosmanes
Chief Information OLfCEr .......cc.cvviiriminereiiire i e

Payroll Supervisor..

Building and {Jmunds bupuwmr
FoOd Service SUPETVISOT .....ccuiieeiicieiissiianceeeessaesesmeessesnmessenmseesnnes
suppon; BAUCatict SUPEIVIEOL i s s e
Support Education SUpervisor ..o,
NS PO DR S UDERVISON .., i s ey s beh S B e et

Public:-Information OFHeer ..o i ami s

VIII

Kevin L. Bright
sonta Milrod
Michael Brannon
Craig C. Ullery
Richard L. Gardner
Chris Hofer
Ginny Jackson
Dave Hickey
Terri Ross
George Highfill
Darlene Hicks
Laura Bosse
Lynn Brannon
Dave Foster
Shelly Hausman




Financial
Section




This Page is Intentionally Left Blank.



INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REFORT

Mason City School District
Warren County

211 Morth East Sireel
Mason, Ohio 45044

To the Board of Education:

We have audiled the accompanying financial statements aof the governmental activiies, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Mason City School Distriel,
Warren County, Ohio (the District), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2003, which collectively
comprise the Districl's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These flinancial
statemenis are lhe responsibility of the District's managemenl. Our responsibility is lo express opinions
on these financial statements basad on our audit.

We conducted our audil in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Uniled States of
America and the slandards applicable 1o financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the Unifed Stales. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit o oblain reasonable assurance aboul whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by managemenl, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present faidy, in all material respects, the
respeclive financial position of the governmaental aclivilies, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of Mason City School District, Warren County, Ohio, as of
June 30 2003, and the respeclive changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, for the

year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United Stales of
America.

As described in Note 3, during the year ended June 30, 2003, the Government implemented a new
financial reporling model, as required by the provisions of Governmental Accounting Slandards Board
Statemenl No. 34, Basic Financial Statements- and Management's Discussion and Analysis- for Stale
and Local Governmentis.

In accordance with Government Audiling Standards, we have also issued our reporl dated January 23,
2004 on our consideration of the Government's internal control over financial reparling and our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. Thal report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards and should be read in
conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis and the Schedule of Revenues, Expendilures and Changes
in Fund Balances Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Basis) for the General Fund are not a required part of
the basic financial statements bul are supplementary information the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board requires. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of
inquiries of managemenl regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

230 W, Court St/ Suite 15 °E / Cincinnati, OFF 45412
Telephone: (513) 361-8550 (B0 368-T419 Fax: (513} 361-83577
ww s anditorslabe ohous




Mason City School Dislrict
Warran County

Independent Accountants’ Report
Fage 2

We conducted our audit lo form opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
District's basic financial slalements. The introductory section, combining and individual nonmajor fund
statements and schedules and stalistical tables are presented for additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements. We subjected the combining and individual nonmajor fund
staternents and schedules to the audiling procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements. In our opinion, this information is fairly staled in all malerial respects in relation to the basic
financial staltements taken as a whole. Wae did not subjec! the introductory section and statistical tables to
the audiling procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we
express no opinion on them.

oty entgmeny

Betty Montgomery
Auditor of Slate

January 23, 2004




MASON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003
(Unaudited)

The discussion and analysis of Mason City School District’s finaneial performance provides an overall
review of the District’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003. The intent of this
discussion and analysis is to look at the District’s financial performance as a whole; readers should also
review the transmittal letter, notes to the basic financial statements and financial statements to enhance
their understanding of the District’s performance.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of the new reporting model adopted
by the Govemmental Accounting Standard Board (GASB) in their Statement Mo. 34 Basic Financial
Staternents — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Government issued J une,
1999. Certain comparative information between the current year and the prior year is required to be
presented in the MD&A. However, because this is the first year of implementing the new reporting
model, certain necessary comparative information of the previous year was not prepared. Considering the
financial resources necessary to prepare this information for the prior year, and that the GASB Statement
No. 34 permits the omission of the comparative information in the first year of adeption of the new
reporting model, the Board has elected to exclude the information in this report. Subsequent reports will
include the comparative information.

Financial Highlights
Key financial highlights for 2003 are as follows:

* In total, net assets increased $7.61 million. Net assets of governmental activities increased $6.99
million which represents a 39.2% increase from 2002. Net assets of business-type activities
increased $0.62 million or 70.0% from 2002.

* General revenues accounted for $72.7 million in revenue or 91.6% of all revenues. Program specific
revenues in the form of charges for services and sales: and grants and contributions accounted for
$6.69 million or 8.4% of total revenues of $79.39 million.

* Total assets of governmental activities increased by $5.07 million as cash decreased by $13.24 million
while taxes receivable and capital assets increased by $19.00 million.

* The District had $68.79 million in expenses related (o governmental activities: only $3.19 million of
those expenses were offset by program specific charges for services, grants or contributions, General
revenues of $72.59% million were adequate to provide for these programs.

* The General Fund had $61.04 million in revenues and $57.38 million in expenditures. The General
Fund’s fund balance increased from $11.94 to $14.55 million,

® Net assels for Enterprise Funds increased by $.62 million. This increase resulted from operating

income of $2.53 million and grants and contributions of $1.08 million exceeding operating expenses
of $2.99 million.



Using this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements and notes to those statements. These
statements are organized so the reader can understand the District as a financial whole, an entire

operating entity. The statements then proceed to provide an increasingly detailed look at specific
financial activities,

The Statement of Net Assets and Statements of Activities provide information about the activities of the
whole District, presenting both an aggregate view of the District’s finances and a longer-term view of
those finances. Fund financial statements provide the next level of detail. For governmental funds, these
statements tell how services were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future spending,
The fund financial statements also look at the District's most significant funds with all other nonmajor

funds presented in total in one column. The General F und, Debt Service Fund and Building Fund are the
major funds of the District.

Reporting the Schoo! District as 2 Whole
Statement of Net Assets and the Statement af Activities

The analysis of the District as a whole begins with the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of
Activities. These reports provide information that will help the reader to determine if the Mason City
School District is financially better off or worse off as a result of the vear's activities. These statements
include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting similar to the accounting used by

private sector companies. All current year revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of
when cash is received or paid,

These two statements report the District’s net assets and changes in those assets. This change in net
assets is important because it tells the reader that, for the District as a whole, the financial position has
improved or diminished. The causes of this change may be the result of many factors, both financial and
non-financial. Non-financial factors include the District's property tax base, current property tax laws in
Ohio restricting revenue growth, facility conditions, required educational programs and other factors.

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, the District is divided into two distinct
kinds of activities:

¢ Governmental Activities — Most of the District’s programs and services are reported here including

instruction, support services, operation and maintenance of plant, pupil transportation and
extracurricular activities.

* Business-Type Activities — These services are provided on a charge for goods or services basis to
recover all of the expenses of the goods or services provided. The District’s food service, uniform
school supplies and latch key services are reported as business activities.




Reporting the District’s Most Significant Funds

Fund Financial Statements

Information about the District's major funds is presented in the Fund Financial Statements (see table of
contents). Fund financial reports provide detailed information about the District’s major funds. The
District uses many funds to account for a multitude of financial transactions. However, these fund
financial statements focus on the District’s most significant funds.

Governmental Funds Most of the District’s activities are reported in governmental funds, which focus
on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end available for spending
in future periods. These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual
accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The
governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the District’s general government
operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps vou determine
whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance
educational programs. The relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the
Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) and governmental fitnds is reconciled in the
financial statements.

Proprietary Funds  Proprietary funds use the same basis of accounting as business-type activities:
therefore, these statements will essentially match.

The District as a Whole
Recall that the Statement of Net Assets provides the perspective of the District as a whole.

Table 1 provides a summary of the District’s net assets for 2003 compared to 2002:

Table 1
MNet Assets

Governmental Activities Busingss-Type Activities Total

__ 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
Asaets
Current and Other Assets 578,270,406 $86,753.544  $443 (41 £432,200 478,713,547  S87,185753
Capital Assets 121.763. 158 108210279 1,360,561 _569955 123.123.719 |08 BRO.234
Toral Assets 200.033 564 194,953,823 LED3TOZ 1,102 164 201837366 196,065,087
Liabilities
Long-Term Liabilities 12,110,398 1 14,440,398 37,564 32,594 112,147,962 114,603,685
Other Liabilities _62407.695  £1.993.04] 250389 183287 62,667,084 62,176,328
Total Lizbilities 174,518,093 176433.439 296953 205881 174815046 _176.780,013
Met Assets
Invested in Capital

Aussets Net of Debt 9522 067 7668048 1,360,561 B6Y.955 10,882,628 §,338.003

Restricted 178,617 4,112,946 0 0 1,178,617 4,112,946
Unrestricted _BRI4TRT 6749390 _ 146088 216328 8,960,975 6,965,718
Total Net Assets 225 i1l 518530384 $1,500749 _$886283 $27,022220 §19.416,667




Total assets increased $5.77 million. Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents decreased $13.08
million. Capital assets increased $14.24 million and taxes receivable increased $5.44 million. Total
liabilities increased $1.96 million, resulting in a net asset increase of $7.73 million.

Table 2 shows the change in net assets for fiscal year 2003. Since this is the first year the District has

prepared financial statements following GASB Statement 34, revenue and expense comparisons to fiscal
vear 2002 arc not availahle,

Table 2
Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2003 2003 - 2003

Revenues
Program Revenues:

Charges for Services $1,135,122 $2.426.526 $3,561,64%

Operating Grants 1,849,047 332,303 2,181,350

Capital Grants 203 441 T44 342 947,833
General Revenue:

Property Taxes 46,418,347 0 46,418,347

Grants and Entitlements 23,915,631 i 23,915,631

Oithrer 2,252,096 — 111,025 2.363.12|
Total Revenues IS 773034 _1614.196 _T9.387.930
Program Expenses:
[nstruction 30,930,158 ] 30,939,158
Support Services:

Fupil and Instructional Staff 8,166,207 0 8,166,807

Board, Administrative, Fiscal

and Business 5,821,904 1] 5,821,904

Operations and Maintenance 7077214 0 7977214

Pupil Transportation 4,662,523 0 4,662,523

Central 3,205 061 0 3,295,061
Community Services 582413 0 582,413
Extracurricular Activities 1,373 452 1] 1,373,452
[nterest and Fiscal Charges 5970025 ] 5,970,025
Food Service i 2,621,570 2,621,570
Liniform School Supply 0 4,797 34,797
Latchkey ooray e, __ 337363 - 337363
Tatal Expenses _68.788.647 2,993,730 71,782,377
Incresse in Met Assets 56,585 087 _ 5620966 37,605,553




Governmental Activities

The District revenues are mainly from two sources. Property taxes levied for general purposes and grants
and entitlements comprised 92.8% of the District’s revenues for governmental activities.

The District depends greatly on property taxes as a revenue source. The unique nature of property taxes
in Ohio creates the need to routinely seek voter approval for operating funds. The overall revenues
generated by a levy will not increase solely as a result of inflation. As an example, a homeowner with a
home valued at $100,000 whose taxes include a 1.0 mill outside operating levy would pay $35.00
annually in taxes. If three years later the home were reappraised and increased to $200,000 (and this
inflationary increase in value is comparable to other property owners) the effective tax rate for the
outside operating levy would become .5 mills and the owner would still pay $35.00.

Thus Ohio school districts do not receive additional tax revenue related to the increase in appraised value
and must regularly return to the voters to maintain a constant level of service. Property taxes made up
61.3% of revenue for governmental activities for the District in fiscal year 2003,

Instruction comprises 45% of governmental program expenses. Support services expenses were 43.5%
of governmental program expenses. Interest expense was 8.7%. Interest expense was attributable 1o the
outstanding bond and borrowing for capital projects.

The Statement of Activities shows the cost of program services and the charges for services and grants
offsetting those services. Table 3 shows, for government activities, the total cost of services and the net
cost of services. That is, it identifies the cost of these services supported by tax revenue and unrestricted
State entitlements. Comparisons to 2002 have not been made since they are not available.

Table 3
Governmental Activities

Total Costof Met Cost of
Services Services
2003 2003
Instruction $30,939. 158 £28.981,758
Support Services:
Pupil and Instructional Staff & 166,807 8,016,984
Board, Administration, Fiscal
and Business 5,821,994 5,821,994
Operations and Maintenance 7.977.214 7.676,211
Fupil Transportation 4662521 4,541,152
Central 3.295.061 1,185,658
Community Services 382,413 122,747
Extracurricular Activities 1,373,452 1,284 456
Interest and Fiscal Charges 3,970,025 5,970,025
Total Expenses k. 647 $65,600,987




Business-Type Activities

Business-type activities, include the food service operation, the sale of uniform school supplies and
latchkey services. These programs had revenues of $3.61 million and expenses of $2.99 million for fiscal
year 2003. Business activities receive no support from tax revenues.

The District’s Funds

Information about the District's major governmental funds i presented in the Fund Financial Statements
(see table of contents). These funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting.
All governmental funds had total revenues and other financing sources of $93,608,141 and expenditures

and other financing uses of $102,754.957. The net change in fund balance for the year was (59,146,816)
or (33.0%).

General Fund Budgeting Highlights

The District’s budget is prepared according to Ohio law and is based on accounting for certain

transactions on a basis of cash receipts, disbursements and encumbrances. The most significant budgeted
fund is the General Fund.

During the current fiscal year, the District amended its general fund budget numerous times, however
none were significant. The District uses site-based budgeting and the budgeting systems are designed to
tightly control total site budgets but provide flexibility for site management. During the course of the

year, the District revised the Budget in an attempt to deal with unexpected changes in revenues and
expenditures,

For the General Fund, budget basis revenue was $64.42 million. The original budget estimate was

$61.53 million. The $2.89 million difference was primarily due to conservative estimates for taxes and
intergovernmental revenue.

The District’s ending unobligated General Fund cash balance was $2.88 million above the final budgeted
amount.

Capital Assets and Debt Aministration

Capital Assets

At year end, the District had $123.1 million invested in land, buildings and equipment. Table 4 shows
fiscal 2003 balances compared to [iscal 2002:

Table 4
Capital Assets at June 30
(Net of Depreciation)

Governmental Activities Business-Twvpe Activities Toal
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
Land and Improvements E5.830,438 $5,712,99] 50 30 55839438 $5.712,09]
Construction in Progress 372,188 45024024 1] 0 372,188 45024024
Buildings and Improvements 103,789 388 47,520,879 0 0 103,789,388 47,520,879
Equipment 11.762.144 _ 9952384 1360561 _669.956 13122705 10,622,340
Total Net Assets 3121763158 §108.210278 $1360,561 $669,956  $123,123.719 §108,880.234

B




The increase in capital assets is due to $17.43 million in acquisitions (mainly in connection with the new
high school and community center), offset by the recognition of $2.99 million in depreciation expense
and retirement of $.22 million in assets, net of depreciation. This District continues its ongoing
commitment to maintaining and improving its capital assets.

Debt

At year end, the District had $112,010,000 in bonds outstanding, $2,860,000 due within one year. Table
5 summarizes bonds outstanding.

Table 5
Outstanding Debt, at Year End

Governmental Governmental
Activities Activities
2003 _ 2002
Total:
General Obligation Bonds:
1992 Building Construction & Equipment 53,200,000 54,200,000
1995 Building Censtruction & Equipment 17,813,000 L§, 140,000
1998 Building Construction & Equipment 21,420,000 21,680,000
2001 High School/Recreation Center Construction & Equipment 69,575,000 70,310,000
112,000,000 114,340,000

At year end, the District’s overall legal debt margin (based on its being granted special needs status) was

$36,344,680 with an unvoted deht margin of $1,102,119, The District maintains an Aa? bond rating
(from Moody's).

For the Future

The economic condition and outlook for the District remains positive. Although development has
slowed from the frantic pace of the last ten years, new business and residential development projects are
still continuing despite the general economic downturn in the State. It is estimated that there remains
approximately 15% of the total land area within the District available for development.

Externally, in March 1997, the Ohio Supreme Court found the State of Ohio to be operating an
unconstitutional educational system, one that was neither “adequate” nor “equitable.” Since 1997, the
State has made some improvements, but on December 11, 2002, the Supreme Court again determined
that the current school funding system is unconstitutional, and that the State had failed to enact “a
complete systematic overhaul” of the school funding system. However, the Supreme Court also
determined not to retain jurisdiction of the case. Without that jurisdiction it is questionable whether the
State will make any significant changes to the funding system or increase the funding to an adequate
level. The State’s projections for revenues over the current biennium budget produce almost no
increases in funding after enrollment growth is factored out.

This scenario requires management to plan carefully and prudently to provide the resources to meet
student needs over the next several vears.




In 2001, when the last operating levy was passed, the District projected that it would need to return to the
voters for another operating levy in 2005 to address a deficit projected for the 2006-07 school year.
Despite the decreased revenue projections from the State, the District plans to meet this commitment
through significant budgetary controls and spending restrictions that have been in effect during this
period of time. This has resulted in the District spending significantly less per pupil than the State
average, while producing results that rank it in the top 13 districts in the State. However, the District

continues to forecast a deficit in fiscal year 2007 that will require a new operating levy sometime in
2005,

It is no surprise that all of the District’s financial management abilities and controls will be needed to
meet the challenges of the future. However, with continued careful planning and monitoring of the
District’s finances and continued support from the community, the District’s management is confident
that the District will continue to provide a high quality education for our students while maintaining a
balanced, cost efficient budget.

Contacting the District’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, and investors and creditors with a
general overview of the District’s finances and to show the District’s accountability for the money it
receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact
Richard Gardner, Treasurer at Mason City Schools, 211 North East Street, Mason Ohio 45040, Or E-
mail at gardnerr@mason.k12,0h.us.
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Muszon City School District
Slatement of Nel Assels
June 3, 2003

Aszsels;
Eequity in Pooled Cash and Investments
Restricted Cash and Investmments
Cash with Fiscal and Escrow Agents
Receivables:

Taxes

Accounts

Interest

Interpovernmental
Inventory
Mondepreciable Capiral Assets
Drepreciable Capital Asscts, Net

Total Assets

Liahilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrucd Wages and Benefuis
Retmnage Payable
Accrued Interest Payable
Deferred Revenue
Claims Payable
General Ohiigation Notes Payable
Laong-Term Liabilitics:

Due Within Cne Year

[Due In More Than One Year

Total Liabilities

Wed Agsets:
[nvested in Capital Azsets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted for:
Debt Scrvice
Onher Purposes
Unrestricted

Total Met Assets

See accompanying notes.

Crovermmental Busincas-Type

Activilies Activities Tzl
28,700,726 $330,356 $20.117,082
25,593 ] 85,593
586,086 il SR6,086
45,430 872 1] 48,439,872
107 481 25,569 133,350
2,931 0 2931
2XBT.7 0 287717
] 6l S e G0.916
6,211,626 0 6,211,626

115,551,532

1.360,561

116,912,093

200,023,564 1,803,702 201,837,266
485,237 24,460 500,706
7,397,606 203,880 7,601 486
586,086 i 586,086
530,445 i 530,445
42,490,318 30,125 42,520,443
542,179 0 542,179
7,950,000 0 7,050,000
3,031,366 915 3,032,281
111,495,856 17,564 111,533,420
174,51 8,003 206,953 174,813,046
9,522,067 1,360,561 10,882,628
5,064,105 0 5,064,105
2114,512 1] 2,114 512
%,814,787 146,188 2,960,975
§25,515,471 $1,506,749 527,022,220
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Masom City School District
Stmement of Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Program Revenues

Charges for Crperating Grants Capital Grants
Expenses Services and Saley and Contributions _ and Contributicns
Governmental Activities:
Instruction:
Repular $25.808.521 697,192 5562 662 SREAG]
Special 4,919,224 4,080 560,172 0
Wocational 25017 {} 24 959 i
Ciher 186,396 19,574 0 a
SUPpOrT Services:
Pupil 3,538,012 5,115 22,323 il
Instmuctional Staff 4.623,705 15,444 | {030 ¥
General Admimistration 72,313 1 V] L
School Administration 4,116,169 0 ] i)
Fiseal 1,364,522 0 i 0
Business 268,085 i i 0
Operations and Maintenance 7.977.214 293 985 7020 0
Pupil Transporlation 4,662,523 6,341 0 115,030
Central 3.295.061 0 108 403 ]
Community Services 582413 4097 455 569 ]
Exmacurricular Activities 1,373,452 BE,996 0 i
Interesi and Fiscal Charpes 5,070,025 W] 1] 0
Total Governmental Activities 6B TER.647 1,135,142 1,848 047 203,491
Business-Type Activitics:
Food Service 2621.570 2083 843 332,303 744,342
Uniform School Supply 34,797 0 0 {
Latchkey _ 337,363 342,683 0 ]
Totwal Business-Type Activities 2,993,730 2426,526 332,303 44,342
Totals $71,782.377 53,561,648 §2, 181,350 54947 ¥33

General Revenues:
Property Taxes Levied for
General Purposes
Dbt Service
Capital Projects

Girants and Entitlements not Restricted o Specfic Programs

Payment in Lieu of Taxes
Vnrestrcted Contmibutions
Investment Eamings

Other Revenues

Tzl General Revenues
Change in Net Asscts

Met Assels Beginning of Y ear

Met Assets End of Year

Sce accompanying notes.

1z




et (Expense) Revenue
and Changes in Net Assers

Governmental Business-Tvpe
Aetivities Artivities Total
(22 400,206 50 {524 400, 200:)
{4.354.972) i) {4,354.972)
(58] i [38)
(166,522) 0 (166,322
(3,510,574) i (3,510.574)
(4,506,412} il (4,506,412)
[(T2318) ] {7231%)
(4.116.169) 1] (4116, 1a%)
(1364522} 0 (1,364,522
(268, 985) ] (268,983)
(T4676,211) 0 (7.676,211)
(4,541,150 o (4,5341,132)
(3,1 85,658) ] (3, 185.65%)
(122,747 ] (122,747)
{1.284 4563 { (1.284.450)
(5,970,025% {l [ 3.970.025}
[G5.600SET) ] (65 600887
L1 538918 538491K
0 (34.797) (34,797
] 3,520 5,320
i 300 441 08,441
(365,0600,987) . 5500 44| (563,091 546)
36,422 708 [ 30422708
951433 i 9514 254
451,285 i 48] 285
231.915,631 it 23,915,631
|76, 18 il 1.076,718
G000 i 600, (00
524446 2,461 527107
500932 10E 364 OG0,
72580074 111025 72,697 0040
0,955,087 G20 A060 1605553
18,530,384 HEf. 283 19,416,667
825515471 $1.506.740 327,022,270
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Mason City School Dismer
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds

June 30, 2003

Asgels:

Equity in Pooled Cash and Tnvestments

Resmcted Cash and lnvestments
Cesh with Fizcal and Escrow Apenls
Receivables:

Taxes

Ancounts

Interest

Intergovernmental

Togerfund

Total Assets

Liakilities snd Fund Balances:
Liabrilities:

MAccounts Payable

Accrued Wages and Benefits
Compenzited Absences
Retainege Pavuble

Acerued Tnterest Pavable
lnterfund Payable

Deferred Revenue

Claims Pavable

Gieneral Obligation Notes Payable

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances

Reserved for Encumbeances
Rezerved for Property Tax Advances
Reserved for Budger Stabilization

Lmreserved, Undesignated, Reported in

General Fund

special Revenue Funds

Lebt Service Fumds

Capilal Projects Funds
Totol Fund Balunces

Taotal Liabilities and Fund Balances

See accompanying notes

(her Tonl
Drebt Governmental Governmental
Ciencral Service Building Fumds Fumds

S17.854 847 34,1363 79 £2.563 501 54,203 e S20.T60,726
£5.593 0 L Q 55.593
] fl SB6.086 0 586,086
3R 050,022 9.828.692 ] dnl, 158 4K 430 872
QK813 [l i} 5608 107481
2031 i ] 0 1031
] i il 287,717 XRITNT

69,138 0 0 0 69,138
56,261,344 13,967.071 3,145 587 4,961,532 TE.330,534
137 645 ] 97,736 54 856 485,237
6,941,035 L] 0 165,926 7107561
227978 0 0 4,667 232,645
] 4] 356, 086 0 586,086
i ] 59,625 0 59625
] 0 ] 09, 138 64,138
13 hG66 R4 BA423,146 ] 0359 636G 42,729 466
542,179 Li] 4] { 542,179
1] 1] T.050,000 Q 750,000
41,711,121 8,423,146 §,693,447 914223 59,761,937
4bi 445 0 1,170,389 108 404 1,520,332
4 483,338 1,405, 546 1] 660,053 5,954,037
85,503 4] 1] 0 §5.593
9520847 4] 0 1] 9 520 847
Q 4] 0 L 6490,293 1,690,203
0 4,138,379 0 i 4,138,379

0 0 (6,714,249 2072475 14,641,774}
14,550,223 5,543 825 (5,543 B60) 4027 31% LB 577,607
$356,261,344 §13,967,071 $3.149, 587 54,961,542 78,339,544
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Mazon Ciry School District

Reconciliaticn of Total Governmental Fund Balance 1o
Met Assets of Governmental Activites
June 30, 2003

Total Governmental Fund Balance FI18,577 607

Amcunts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not finansial
resources and therefore are not reported in the fimds. 121,753,158

Creher long-term assets are notl available (o pay for current-
penod expendinures and therefore are deferred in the funds. 239,148

In the statement of net assets, interest is accrued, whereas
in the governmental funds interest is reported as a
lighility only when it will require the use of current
finencial resouwrces, (4749 8520}

Some habilites, such as compensated absences and accrued benefits,
do not requine the use of current financial resowrces and therefore

ire il reported as habilities tn govemmental funds, (2,474, 224)

Long-term liohilities, are not due and pavable in the current

pericd and therefore are not reported in the funds. (1021 10,398)
Net Asseis of Governmental Activities 525515471

See accompanying notss,
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Miason City School District

Statement of Revenues, Expendituras and Changes m Fund Balanes

Governmenial Funds
For the Fiscal ¥ ear Ended June 30, 2003

Fevenues

Taxes

Tuitiom amsd Fees
Investment Earnings
Imergovernmental
Extracurrscular Activities
Oither Revenues

Total Revenues

Expendifures:
Current:
In=ii IJl:lilv'-I:l
Repular
Special
Yocnonal
Oither
Support Services;
Fupil
Instructional Staft
Gieneral Administration
School Administration
Fiszal
Business
Crperations and Maintenance
Pupil Transportation
Cemitral
Commumity Services
Extracwmicelar Actvites
Debt Service:
Principal Retrement
Interyst and Fiscal Charges

Towml Expendingres
Exeess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures
Other Financing Sources {Lses):
Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets
Transfers In
Transfers {Chut)
Total Other Financing Sources ([ses)
HMet Change in Fund Balance

frund Balamrce Beginnimp of Year

Fund Balance End of Y ear

S ACCOMpInying noles.

Othier Totul
ebi Giovermnmental Ciovernmental
General Service Building Funds Funds
£36,422 709 50,504,353 50 L o 6418347
313,180 i 0 RER R F40,664
313,637 B9,055 104,551 12205 524 448
23444 479 GEE.427 0 296,120 23, 72%021
0 0 0 549057 540057
Jdd A2 ] 1] 1,621,184 1,963,596
61038427 10,591 830 109 551 1,993 325 75,733,133
24,256,509 £ L 663052 37,047 264
4,436,480 0 4709 540 482,128 5,398,143
681 u 77345 23,908 100,974
186,306 ] V] 0 186,306
JABT 513 o 185 628 30,540 3,704,000
4 ATE D41 0 572,354 122,301 5,152,606
72318 o @ i 2318
4,055,742 21,953 264,071 1032 4,542 708
2153012 127,970 0 HAE4 1,349 206
266,655 0 15.46% ) 182150
T 456706 0 1,002 908 360,392 £.900,007
4,185,309 i 150,511 0329 4,345,119
2,181,195 0 965,220 103,028 3249443
62 B2 0 63,575 18 246 554 650
1,035,035 1] IT257 276,386 | 6HSETE
4] 2,330,001 0 [{] 2,330,000
4] 3,809.938 168,791 ] F9T8.730
37370611 §2B9.80] 16,734,354 24860,551 B4 HE0.557
3058616 2,301,962 [16,614,843] 1,506,434 (9,147 824)
B 00| N n 0 1,008
0 7,550,000 5874000 1 50,000 17,574,000
1,050, 0KD) (KA T4 000} {7,950 ({0} ] {17 874 0040}
(1,045,992} (@24 0060} 524 000 I 050 0040 1,008
2,609,624 1377969 (15,690,842} 15560454 19,146, 816)
11.940,599 4.165,956 10,146,953 1470.885 37724423
$14,550,221 55,543,925 ($5.543 260} 54,027,319 £18,577 607
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Mason City Schoal Disiract

Reconcilintion of the Staterment of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balance of Govermmental Funds to the Statement of Activitics

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Met Change in Fund Balance - Total Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for povernmental activities in the
statement of actvibes are different because:

Criovernmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures,
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those
assets 15 allocated over their estimated useful lives as
depreciation expense. This 15 the amount by which capital
outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period.

CGovernmental funds only report the disposal of assets to the
extenl proceeds are received from the sale, In the statement
of activities, a gain or loss is reported for each disposal, The
amount of the procesds must be removed and the deduction
for the loss on the dizposal of capital assets must also be
recognized,

Revenues in the statemen: of activities that do not provide
current financial resources are nat IE‘J_'IL:I:'IID:[] A% revenues in
the funds,

Repayment of bond principal is an cxpenditure in the
govemnmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term

liobilifies in the stalement of net assets.

In the statement of activines, interss) is aconeed, whereas in
povernmental funds, an interes! expendifure is reported when due.

Some expenses reparted in the statement of activines,
such as compensated absences and accrued benefits,
do not require the use of current financial
resources and therefors are not reporied as expendimres
in povermmental funds.

Change in Met Assets of Governmental Activities

See accompanying notes.

1

(59.146,816)

13,752.435

(199.555)

239,148

2,350_000

E.705

1,170

56,985, KT




Mazon City Schonl District
Statement of Met Asscts
Proprietary Funds

June 30, 2003

AssEts:
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments
Receivables:
Accounts
Inventory

Total Current Assets
Dreprecinhle Capital Asscts, Met
Total Assets

Liabilitics:

Current Linhilities:

Accounts Pavable

Acerued Wages and Benefits
Compensated Absences
Deferred Revenue

Toral Current Liabilities

Lonp-Term Lizbilines:
Compensated Absences

Toral Liabilities

Met Assets;

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt

Linrestricted
Total Net Assets

Sec accompanying notes.

Business-Type
Activity
Enterprise
Funds

$£356,356

25,869
60,916

4435141

1,360,561

1,803,702

24,469
205,880
215
30125

259,389

37,5064

296,953

1,360,561
146,188

51,506,749
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Mason City School District

Sratement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Crperating Revenues:

Sales

':'hEIJ'_E(:E for Services

Othier Revenues

Total Operating Revenues

Cperating Ex penses:

Personal Services

Contractual Services

Materinls and Supplics

Dicpreciation

Crther Expenses

Total Operating Expenses

Chperating Income {Loss)
Mon-Orperating Revenues | Expenses):
Investment Eamings

Donated Commoditics

Opernting Grants

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
[ncome (Loss) Before Conmributions & Transfers
Capital Grants and Contributions
Change in Nct Asscts

Met Assets Beginning of Year

MNet Assets End of Year

See acoompanying noles.
-1

Business-Type
Acliviry
Enterprise
Funds

$2,083,843
342,683
108,364

2,534,800

1.512.592
65,850
1,320,946
91,231
3,102

2,993,730

{45%,840)

2,661
152,827
179,476

3349064

(123,876)
744,242
620,466
886,283

504,749

||
wilealh 2ok
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Mason Cite School Diztrict

Statement of Cash Flows

FProprietary Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2003

Cash Flows [rom Operating Activities:
Cash Received from Customers

Cash Payments to Employess

Cush Payments 1o Supphers

Cash Payments for Claims

Other Cash Payments

Met Cosh Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Nencapital Financing Activities:
Operating Grants Received
Payments w Other Fungds

Met Cash Provided (Used) by Noncepial Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capitnl and Related Financing Activities:
Payments for Capital Acgquisitions

Met Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and
Reloted Financing Activitics

Cash Florws from Investing Achivities:
Ewrmings on Investmesils

Met Cash Provided (Used) by Cash Flows from Investing Activiges
Met Increase (Decrease) in Cash - and Cash Egquivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents Beginning of Y ear

Cash and Cesh Equivalents End of Year

Recanciliation of Oparating Income (Loss) 1o
Met Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activitics
Opernting Income [Loss)
Adjustments:
Diepreciation
Donated Comoditics
Changes in Assets & Lizhilities
(Increase) Decrense in Receivables
[Increase) Decrease i Inventory
(Tncrease) Decrease in Other Assets
Increase (Decrease) in Payables
Incrense (Decrease) in Accrped Linhilities
Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Revenue

Met Cash Provided {Used) by Operating Activities
Schedule of Noncash Capital Activities:

Dring the fiscal yeur, the Food Service Fund
recerved contribated food commodities valued at

Sef pocoinpanving noles.

Business-Type
Activity
Enterprise
Funds

$2.517,731
[ 1,448 685)

(1,230,235)
]

(2,958])

179,476
_i2,500)

176,976

(37495)

{37.495)

2661

2661
(22,005)
378,361

336,356

[458,.840)

91,331
152,827

(17.137)
(2T.587)
11,787
19,204
52,200

2078

(5164147}

5152827
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Mazonr City School District
Statement of Fiduciary Met Assets
Fiduciary Funds

Jume 30, 2003

Assets:
Equity in Pooled Cash and lnvestments
Receivables:
Accounts
Total Aszsets
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Oither Liabilities

Tetal Liabilities

MNet Assets;
Held in Trust

Total Met Assets

See accompanying noles.

Education
Private Purpose Trust

Endewment
Private Purpose Trust

Agency

66,764 $24,1%6 $229,001
507 0 500
67,271 24,186 3229501
0 0 1,715
0 0 227,786
0 0 §229 501
67,271 24,186
$67.271 $24.186
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Mason City School District

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Nel Assets
Fiduciary Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended hune 30, 2003

Additions:
Donations
Investment Earnings

Total Additions

Dreductions:
Scholarships

Tota] Deductions

Change in Net Assets

Met Assets Beginning of Year
MNet Assets End of Year

See accompanying notes.

Education
Private Purpose Trust

Endowment
Private Purpose Trost

$350.266 $2,039
586 8613
50,852 2,902
5,000 1,683
5,000 1,883
45,852 1,019
21,419 23,167
$67,271 524,156




MASON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

1. DESCRIPTION OF THE DISTRICT

The Mason City School District (the “District™) operates under a locally elected five member
Board and provides educational services as authorized by its charter or further mandated by
state/or federal agencies. The Board controls the District’s eight instructional facilities, staffed
by 563 classified personnel, 541 certified full-time teaching personnel and administrative
employees to provide services to students and other community members.

The District is located in Warren and Butler Counties in southwest Ohio. The District contains
25 square miles, with 99% of its territory located within Warren County and the remaining 1% in
Butler County. Political subdivisions included in the District are the City of Mason, portions of
Deerfield, Union and Turtle Creek Townships in Warren County, and a portion of West Chester
Township in Butler County. The District is approximately 25 minutes northeast of downtown
Cincinnati and 35 minutes southwest of downtown Dayton. The enrollment for the District
during the current fiscal year was 8,003. The District operates one preschool, one early
childhood center (K), two elementary schools (1-2) and (2-3), one intermediate school (4-6), one
middle school (7-8) and a high school (9-12).

REPORTING ENTITY

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board [GASB] Statement 14, the
financial reporting entity consists of a primary government. The District is a primary
government because it is a special-purpose government that has a separately elected governing
body, is legally separate, and is fiscally independent of other state and local governments.

There are no component units combined with the District for financial statement presentation
purposes, and it is not included in any other governmental reporting entity. Consequently, the
District's financial statements include only the funds of those organizational entities for which its
elected governing body is financially accountable. The District's major operations include
education, pupil transportation, food service, and maintenance of District facilities,

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the District have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental
accounting and financial reporting principles. The District also applies Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) statements and interpretations issued on or before November 30, 1989,
to its governmental and business-type activities and to its proprietary funds provided they do not
conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. For business-type activities and proprietary
funds, the District has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance. The most
significant of the District’s accounting policies are described below.
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FUND ACCOUNTING

The Dislrict uses funds to maintain its financial records during the fiscal year. Fund accounting
1s designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid management by segregating transactions
related to certain District functions or activities. A fund is defined as a fiscal and accounting
entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. The various funds of the District are grouped into
the categones governmental, proprietary and fiduciary.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds focus on the sources, uses and balances of current financial
resources. Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmental funds according
to the purposes for which they may or must be used. Current liabilities are assigned to
the fund from which they will be paid. The difference between governmental fund assets
and liailities i1s reported as fund balance. The following are the District’s major
governmental funds:

General Fund - The general fund is used to account for all financial resources except
those required to be accounted for in another fund. The general fund balance is
available for any purpose provided it 1s expended or transferred according to the
general laws of Ohio,

Debt Service Fund — The debt service fund is used to account for the accumulation
of resources for the payment of general obligation bond principal and interest and
certain other long-term obligations from governmental resources when the District
is obligated in some manner for the payment.

Building Capital Projects Fund — The building fund is used to account for
{inancial resources used in the acquisition or construction of major capital
facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds).

Proprictary Funds
Proprietary fund reporting focuses on the determination of operating income changes in
net assets, financial position and cash flows. Proprietary funds are classified as enterprise
or internal service; the District has no internal service funds.

Enterprise Funds — Enterprise funds may be used to account for any
activity for which a fee is charged to external users for goods or services.
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Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary fund reporting focuses on net assets and changes in net assets. The fiduciary
fund category is split into four classifications: pension trust funds, investment trust
funds, private purpose trust funds and agency funds. Trust funds are used to account for
assets held by the District under a trust agreement for individuals, private organizations,
or other governments and are therefore not available to support the District’s own
programs. Agency funds are custodian in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not
involve measurement of results of operations. The District’s only trust funds are private
purpose trust funds which account for scholarship programs for students.

MEASUREMENT FOCUS

Fund Financial Statements

All governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial resources
measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities
generally are included on the balance sheet. The statement of revenues, expenditures and
changes in fund balances reports on the sources (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and
uses (i.c., expenditures and other financing uses) of current financial resources. This approach
differs from the manner in which the governmental activities of the government-wide financial
statements are prepared. Governmental fund financial statements therefore include reconciliation
with brief explanations to better identify the relationship between the government-wide
statements and the statements for governmental funds.

Like the government-wide statements, all proprietary fund types are accounted for on a flow of
economic resources measurement focus. All assets and all liabilities associated with the
operation of these funds are included on the statement of net assets. The stalement of changes in
fund net assets presents increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses) in nel total assets.
The statement of cash flows provides information about how the District finances and meets the
cash flow needs of its proprietary activities.

Fiduciary Funds are reported using the economic resources measurement focus.

Government-wide Financial Statements
The government-wide statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus.

All assets and liabilities associated with the operation of the District are included on the
statement of net assets. Fiduciary Funds are not included in entity-wide stalements.
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The government-wide statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and
program revenues for each segment of the business-type activities of the District and for each
function or program of the District’s governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are
specifically associated with a service, program or department and therefore clearly identifiable w
a particular function. Program revenues include charges paid by the recipient of the goods or
services offered by the program and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues which are not classified as program
revenues are presented as general revenues of the District, with certain limited exceptions. The
comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which each

business segment or governmental function is self-financing or draws from the general revenues
of the District.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records and
reported on the financial statements. Government-wide financial statements are prepared using
the accrual basis of accounting. Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Proprietary and fiduciary funds also use the accrual basis of accounting, Differences
in the actual and the modified accrual basis of accounting arise in the recognition of revenue, the
recording of deferred revenue, and in the presentation of expenses versus expenditures.

Revenues — Exchange and Non-exchange Transactions

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives
essentially equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place.
On a modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources
are measurable and become available. Available means that the resources will be
collected within the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough
thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. Fer the District, available
means expected to be received within sixty days of fiscal year end.

Nonexchange transactions, in which the District receives value without directly giving
equal value in return, included property taxes, grants, entitlements and donations. On an
accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the
taxes are levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements and donations is recognized in the
fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility
requirements include timing requirements, which specify the vear when the resources are
required to be used or the year when use is first permitted, matching requirements, in
which the District must provide local resources to be used for a specified purpose. and
expenditure requircments, in which the resources are provided to the District on a
reimbursement basis. On a modified accrual basis, revenue from nonexchange
transactions must also be available before it can be recognized.
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Linder the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered to be both
measurable and available at vear end: property taxes available for advance, grants and
interest.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue arises when assets are recognized before revenue recognition criteria
have been satistfied.

Property taxes for which there is an enforceable legal claim as of fiscal year end, but
which were levied to finance subsequent fiscal vear operations, have been recorded as
deferred revenue. Grants and entitlements received before the eligibility requirements are
met are alse recorded as deferred revenue.

On governmental fund financial statements, receivables that will not be collected within
the available period have also been reported as deferred revenue.

Expenses/Expenditures

On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time they are incurred.
The fair value of donated commaodities used during the year is reported in the operating
statement as an expense with a like amount reported as donated commodities revenue.
Unused donated commodities are reported as deferred revenue.

The measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial
resources (expenditures) rather than expenses. Expenditures are generally recognized in
the accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred, if measurable.
However, debt servcie expenditures as well as expenditures related to compensated
ahsences and claims are recorded only when due and payable. Allocations of cost, such as
depreciation and amortization, are not recognized in the governmental funds.

CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Cash received by the District is pooled for investment purposes. Inlerest in the pool is presented
as “equity in pooled cash and investments™ on the financial statements. The District utilizes a
financial institution for escrow related to retainage liabilities and to service bonded debt as

principal and interest payments come due. These balances are presented on the financial
statements as “Cash with fiscal and escrow agents”.

Except for nonparticipating investment contracts, investments are reported at fair value which is
based on quoted market prices. Nonparticipating investment contracts such as nonnegotiable
certificates of deposits and repurchase agreements are reported at cost.

The District has invested funds in the State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio (STAR Ohio) during

the current fiscal year. STAR Ohio is an investment pool managed by the State Treasurer’s
Office, which allows governments within the State to pool their funds for investment purposes.
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STAR Ohio is not registered with the SEC as an investment company but does operate in a
manner consistent with Rule2A7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940. Investments in STAR
Ohio are valued at STAR Ohio’s share price, which is the price the investment could be sold for
at year end.

Following Ohio statutes, the Board has, by resolution, specified the funds to receive an allocation
of interest earnings. Interest revenue during the current fiscal year amounted to $528 558,

For preseniation on the financial statements, investments of the cash management pool and
investments with an original maturity of three months or less at the time they are purchased by
the District are considered to be cash equivalents.

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Enterprise Funds” portion of pooled cash and
investments is considered a cash equivalent because the District is able to withdraw resources
from the enterprise funds without prior notice or penalty.

INVENTORY

On government-wide financial statements. inventories are presented at the lower of cost or
market on a first-in, first-out basis and are expensed when used.

On fund financial statements inventories of proprietary funds are stated at the lower of cost or
market and cost is determined on a first-in, first-out basis.

Inventories of proprietary funds consist of donated food, purchased food, and school supplies
held for resale and are expensed when used.

CAPITAL ASSETS

(ieneral capital assets are those assets not specifically related to activities reported in the
proprietary funds. These assets generally result from expenditures in the governmental funds.
These assets are reported in the governmental activities column of the government-wide
statement of net assets but are not reported in the fund financial statements. Capital assels
utilized by the proprietary funds are reported both in the business-type activities column of the
government-wide statement of net assets and in the respective funds.

All capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for additions
and retirements during the year. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their fair market values as
of the date received. The District maintains a capitalization threshold of five hundred dollars
($500). The District does not possess any infrastructure. Improvements are capitalized: the costs
of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend
an asset’s life are not. Interest incurred during the construction of capital assets is also
capitalized.
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All reported capital assets are depreciated, except land. Improvements are depreciated over the
remaining useful lives of the related capital assets. Depreciation is allocated using the straight-
line method over the following useful lives:

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities
Description Estimated Lives Estimated Lives
Buildings and Improvements 15-100 years N/A
Equipment 5-20 years 5-20) years

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The District reports compensated absences in accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement
No. 16, *Accounting for Compensated Absences.” Vacation benefits are accrued as a Hability as
the benefits are earned if the employees’ rights to receive compensation are attributable to
services already rendered and it is probable that the District will comper.sate the employees for
the benefits through paid time off or some other means. The District records a liability for
accumulated unused vacation time, when earned, for all employees with more than one vear of
service.

Sick leave benefits are accrued as a liability using the termination payment method. An accrual
for carned sick leave is made to the extent that it is probable that the benefits will result in
termination payments. The liability is based on the District’s past experience of making
termination payments.

The entire compensated absence liability is reported on the government-wide [inancial
statements,

For governmental fund financial statements, compensated absences represent amounts due and
payable. These amounts are recorded in the account “compensated absences payable®™ in the fund
from which the employees who have accumulated unpaid leave are paid. The entire amount of
compensated absences is reported as a fund liability in Proprietary Funds.
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The District’s policies regarding compensated absences are determined by the state laws and/or
negotiated agreements. In summary, the policies are as follows:

Wacation Centified Administrators Mon-Certificated
How Eamed Mot Eligible 20-30 days 10-20 days per year
Annually depending on length of
SErvICe
Maximum
Accumulation Mot Applicable Amount equal 1o Amount equal to
yearly accrual yearly accrual
Vested Mot Applicable As Earmed As Farned
Termination
Cntitlement Mot Applicable Paid upon Paid upon
termination termination
Sick Leave
How Earned 1.25 days per month 1.25 days per month 1.25 days per month
of employment (13 of employment (13 of employment {13
days per year) days per year) days per vear)
Maximurm
Accumulation 228 days 228 days 228 days
Vested |5 years of service |5 years of service 15 years of service
Eligible for retirement Eligible for retirement Eligible for retirement
Termination
Entitlement Paid upon Paid upon IMaid upon
retirement retirement retirement
NET ASSETS

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Nel assets invested in capital
assets, net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by
the outstanding balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or
improvement of those assets. Net assets are reported as restricted when there are limitations
imposed on their use either through the enabling legislation adopted by the District or through
external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments,

The District applies restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both
restricted and unrestricted net assets are available.

OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES
Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the primary activity of the
proprietary funds. For the District, these revenues are sales for food service, uniform school

supplies and latch key. Operating expenses are necessary costs incurred to provide the good or
service that is the primary activity of the fund.
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CONTRIBUTIONS OF CAPITAL

Contributions of capital in proprietary fund financial statements arise from outside contributions
of fixed assets, or from pgrants or outside contributions of resources restricted to capital
acquisition and construction,

INTERFUND ACTIVITY

Transfers between governmental and business-type activities on the government-wide statements
are reported in the same manner as general revenues.

Exchange transactions between funds are reported as revenues in the seller funds and as
expenditures/expenses in the purchaser funds. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another
without a requirement for repayment are reported as interfund transfers. Interfund transfers are
reported as other financing sources/uses in governmental funds and after nonoperating
revenues/expenses in proprietary funds. Repayments from funds responsible for particular

expenditures/expenses to the funds that initially paid for them are not presented on the financial
slatements.

FUND EQUITY

Reserved fund balances indicate a portion of fund equity which is not available for current
appropriation or is legally segregated for a specific use. Fund balances are reserved for
encumbrances. debt service, and property taxes, The reserve for property taxes represents taxes
recognized as revenue under generally accepted accounting principles but not available for
appropriations under State statute, The unreserved portion of fund equity, reflected for the
Governmental Funds, is available for use within the specific purpose of those funds.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

For fiscal year 2003, the District has implemented GASB Statement No. 34, “Basic Financial
Statements - and Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments™,
GASB Statement No. 37, “Basic Financial Statements for State and Local Governments:
Ommbus”, GASB Statement No. 38, “Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures”, GASB
Statement No. 41, “Budgetary Comparison Schedules - Perspective Differences”, and GASB
Interpretation No. 6 “Recognition and Measurement of Certain Liabilities and Expenditures in
Governmental Fund Financial Statements.”

GASB 34 creates new basic financial statements for reporting on the District’s financial
activities. The financial statements now include government-wide financial statements prepared
on an accrual basis of accounting and fund financial statements which present information for
individual major funds rather than by fund type. Nonmajor funds are presented in total in one
column.

31




GASB Statement No. 4] allows the presentation of budgetary schedules as required supplementary
information based on the fund, organization or program structure that the government uses for its
legally adopted budget when significant budgetary perspective differences result in the District not
being able to present budgetary comparisons for the general and each major special revenue find.

The government-wide financial statements split the District’s programs between business-type
and governmental activities. Except for the restatement explained below, the beginning net asset
amount for the business-type activities equals fund equity of the Enterprise Funds from last vear,
The beginning net asset amount for governmental programs reflects the change in fund balance
for governmental funds at June 30, 2003.

RESTATEMENT OF FUND BALANCE
The implementation of these stalements had the following effects on fund balance of the major

and non-major funds of the District as they were previously reported. The transition from
governmental fund balances to net assets of the governmental activities is also presented.

General Debt Service  Building Nonmajor Total
Fund Balances, Tune 30, 2002 %£11,940,599 84,165,956  $10,146,983 §1.470,885 $£27.724,423
GASE 34 Adjustments;
Capital Assets S108210,279
Accrued Interest Payable (488.526)
Compensated Absences Payable (2,056,290)
Accrued Pension Liability (419,104}
Long Term Liabilities C(114.440.398)
Governmental Activities Net Assets, June 30, 2002 §18,330,384

CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The District maintains a cash and investment pool used by all funds. Each fund type's portion of
this pool is displayed on the statement of net assets and balance sheet as "Cash and investments."

State statute requires the classification of monies held by the District into three categories:

Active Monies - Those monies required to be kept in a "cash” or "near cash” status for
immediate use by the District. Such monies must by law be maintained either as cash in
the District treasury, in depository accounts payable or withdrawable on demand.

Inactive Monies — Those monies not required for use within the current two vear period
of designated depositories. Ohio law permits inactive monies to be deposited or invested
as certificates of deposit maturing not later than the end of the current period of
designated depositories, or as savings or deposit accounts, including, but not limited 1o
passbook accounts.




[nterim Monies — Those monies which are not needed for immediate use but which will

be needed before the end of the current period of designation of depositories. Ohio law
permits interim monies to be invested or deposited in the following securitics:

(1)

(2)

(3)
(4)

(3)
(6)
(7)

Bonds, notes, or other obligations of or guaranteed by the United States, or
those for which the faith of the United States is pledged for the payment
of principal and interest.

Bonds, notes, debentures, or other obligations or securities issued by any
federal governmental agency.

Repurchase agreements in the securities enumerated above,
Interim deposits in the eligible institutions applying for interim monies to
be evidenced by time certificates of deposit maturing not more than one

year from date of deposit, or by savings or deposit accounts, including, but
limited to, passbook accounts.

Bonds, and other obligations of the State of Ohio.
The Ohio State Treasurer's investment pool (STAR Ohio).

Commercial paper and banker’s acceptances which meet the requirements
established by Ohio Revised Code, Sec. 135.142.

Investments in stripped principal or interest obligations, reverse repurchase agreements
and derivatives are prohibited. The issuance of taxable notes for the purpose of arbitrage,
the use of leverage and short selling are also prohibited. An investment must mature
within five years from the date of purchase unless matched to a specific obligation or debi
of the District, and must be purchased with the expectation that it will be held to maturity.
Investments may only be made through specified dealers and institutions. Payment for
investments may be made only upon delivery of the securities representing the
investments to the treasurer or, if the securities are not represented by a certificate, upon
receipt of confirmation of transfer from the custodian.
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Deposits — At the year end, the carrying amount of the District's deposits was
$17,579,231. The bank balance of deposits was $18,071,545 of which $300,000 was
covered by federal depository insurance. The remaining balance was covered by
collateral held by the pledging bank’s trust department but not in the District’s name
pursuant to Section 135.181, Ohio Revised Code, in collateral pools securing all public
funds on deposit with specific depository institutions. Ohio Revised Code Section
135.181 Uniform Depository Act, authorizes pledging of pooled securities in lieu of
pledging specific securities. Specifically, a designed public depository may pledge a
single pool of eligible securities to secure payment of all public monies deposited in the
financial institution, provided that at all times the total value of the securities so pledged
15 at least 105% of the total amount of all public deposits secured by the pool, including
the portion of such deposits covered by any federal deposit insurance. Although the
pledging bank has an investment and securities pool used to collateralize all public
deposits which are held in the financial institution’s name. noncompliance with federal
requirements could potentially subject the District to a successful claim by the FDIC.
The deposits not covered by federal depository insurance are considered uninsured and
uncollateralized under the provisions of GASB Statement No. 3.

Investments — The District's investments are categorized below to give an indication of
the level of risk assumed by the District at year end:

Category 1 includes investments that are msured or registered or for which the
securities are held by the District or its agent in the District's name.

Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the
securities are held by the counterparty’s trust department or agent
in the District's name.

Category 3 mcludes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the
securities are held by the counterparty or by its department or
agent, but not in the District’s name,

Based on the above criteria, the District’s investments at vear end are classified as
follows:

Carrying

Amount/
Description Category | Category 2 Category 3 Fair Value
Money Market Fund* 50 50 %0 511.896
Federal Agency Securities 0 3219531 0 3219531
State Treasury Pool* 0 1] 0 9298054
Total Investments 20 $3219531 _ £0 §12500.481
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*The District’s investments in the Ohio State Treasury Pool and Money Market Fund are
not categorized because they are not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book
entry form.

5. PROPERTY TAXES

Real property taxes collected in 2003 were levied in April on the assessed values as of January 1,
2002, the lien date. Assessed values are established by the County Auditor at 35 percent of
appraised market value. A re-evaluation of real property is required to be completed no less than
every six years, with a statistical update every third year.

Tangible personal property tax is assessed on eguipment and inventory held by businesses.
Tangible property is assessed at 25 percent of true value (as defined). In 2003, each business was
eligible to receive a $10,000 exemption in assessed value which was reimbursed by the State.

Real property taxes are payable annually or semi-annually. In 2003, if paid annually. payment
was due by January 20th. If paid semi-annually, the first payment (at least 1/2 amount billed)
was due January 20th with the remainder due on June 20th.

The County Auditor remits portions of the taxes collected to all taxing districts with periodic
settlements of real and public utility property taxes in February and August and tangible personal
property taxes in June and October, The District records billed but uncollected property laxes as
receivables at their estimated net realizable value.

Accrued property taxes receivable represent delinquent taxes outstanding and real property,
personal property and public utility taxes which became measurable at June 30. 2003,
Delinquent property taxes collected within 60 days are included as a receivable and tax revenue
as of June 30, 2003. Although total property tax collections for the next fiscal year are
measurable, only the amount available as an advance at June 30 is available to finance current
year operations. The receivable is, therefore, offset by a credit to deferred revenue for that
portion not intended to finance current year operations. The amount available as an advance at
June 30, 2003, was $5,954.937 and is recognized as revenue, with a corresponding reserve to
fund balance since the Board did not appropriate these available advances for fiscal year 2003
operations. The amount available for advance at June 30, 2002 was $2.997,945.

On a full accrual basis, collectible delinquent property taxes have been recorded as a receivable
and revenue, while on a modified accrual basis the revenue has been defer-ed.

The assessed values upon which the fiscal year 2003 taxes were collected are:

Amount
Agricultural/Residential
and Other Real Estate $920,126.080
Public Utility Personal 22.811.670
Tangible Personal Property 159 181.600
Total $1.102,119,350
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6. RECEIVABLES

Receivables at fiscal year end, consisted of taxes, accounts, intergovernmental grants and
interest.  All receivables are considered collectible in full due to the ability to foreclose for the
nonpayment of taxes, the stable condition of State programs, and the current year guarantee of

federal funds.

. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the current fiscal year end was as follows:

Bepginning Ending
Balance Additions Deletions Balance

Government Activities
Mondepreciable Capital Assets:

Land $5,712,991 126,447 $0 $5.839,438

Comstruction in Propress 45,024,024 12,832,680 37.484.516 372,188
Depreciable Capital Assets:

Buildings and Improvements 56,382,866 57,605,228 0 113,988,094

Equipment 16322304 _3.571.333 457,697 19.435.940
I'atals at Historical Caost $123.442,185 $74,135,688 $57.942.213 $139.635.660
Less Accumulated Depreciation:

Buildings and Improvements $8.861,987 £1,336,719 $0 310,198,706

Equipment 6.369.919 1.562.019 258.142 7.673.796
Total Accumulated Depreciation  $15,231,906 52,898 738 258,142 $17.872,502
Governmental Activities Capital

Assets, Net $108,210,279 71,236,950 $57,684,071 $121,763,158
Business-Type Activities
Equipment $1.051.267 3783.508 31.672 $1.833,103
Total at Historical Cost 1,051,267 $783,508 $1,672 $1,833,103
Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Equipment $381.311 $o1.231 50 $472,542
Total Accumulated Depreciation $381,311 $91,231 50 $472,542
Business-Type Activities

Capital Assets, Net 9,95 $692,277 $1,672 $1.360,561
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*Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows:

Instruction;
Regular $1.828,189
Special 43,441
Yocational 6,339
Support Services:
Pupil 34,117
Instructional Staff 90,243
School Administration 59.300
Fiscal 13,405
Business 333
Operations and Maintenance 156,522
Pupil Transportation 439,644
Central 109,893
Community Services 27,958
Extracurricular Activities 86,348
Total Depreciation Expense 52.898.738

8. SHORT-TERM NOTES PAYABLE

Short-Term Notes Payable activity of the District for the current year end was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Principal Frincipal
Outstanding  Additions Deletions  Outstanding
Mason Intermediate
Construction 2002 2.00% $8,700,000 E0 58,700,000 £0
Mason Intermediate
Construction 2003 2.00% 0 7950000 1] 7.950.000
Total 88,700,000  $7,950.000  $8.700,000 §7.950,000

The short-term bond anticipation notes are shown as liabilities of the fund which received the
note proceeds. Accordingly, all note debt activity has been reported in the building fund.

Principal and interest requirements to retire these shori-term notes payable outstanding at year
end are as follows:

Fiscal Year

Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2004 $7,950.000 $159,000 $8.109.000
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9. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Governmental Activities:
General Obligation Boods:

|5%2 Building Construction
and Equipment 5.59%

1595 Building Construction
and Equipment 5.65%

|%%% Building Construction
and Equipment 5.24%

2001 High School / Recreation Center Bonds

Construction and Equipment 5.06%

Total General Ohhigation
Bends and Notes

Compensated Absences
Capital Leases

Total Governmental Activities
Long-Term Liabilities

Busziie ss-Type Activilics
Compensated Absences

Beginning Ending

Principal Principal Diue Tn
Outstanding Additions Deductions Outstandine  One Year
$4,200,000 s0 $1,000,000 ST200,000 1,040,000
18,140, ({0 i 325,000 17,813,000 414, 00
21,650,000 0 20000 21,420,000 350,000
70,310,000 — 0 135,000 GR5T5.000 1100000
[ 14,340,000 i 2.330,000 112007 L L 2 Bl (0
2,201,144 215,680 0 2,416,824 85,329
231091 0 130,693 100,398 86,037
$116,772,.233 215,680 52,460,693 114537222  E3031.366
$32.504 55 885 £0 fig474 5915

General obligation bonds will be paid from the debt service fund. Compensated absences will he
paid from the fund from which the person is paid. Capital lease obligations will be paid from the

general fund.

Principal and interest requirements to retire general obligation debt outstanding at year end are as

follows:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30,
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
Totals

General Oblization Bonds

Principal Interest
$2 860,000 $5,689,836
3,470,000 5,532,023
4,260,000 5,341,609
4,240,000 5,147,141
4,710,000 4947 720
5,085,000 4.711,269
5,515,000 4432733
&, 140,000 4,123,476
6,655,000 3,802,028
T.175,000 3.454.604
T30, 0040 3,058,724
2,550,000 2616973
9.255.000 2,130,699
7,080,000 1,688,589
7,585,000 1,296,521
5,000,000 059,375
5,235,000 694 125
5,495,000 425,875
5.370,000 44 230

Total
$8,549,836
9,002,023
9,601,609
9,387,141
9,657,720
9,796,269
9,947,733
10,263,476
10,457,028
10,629,604
10,988,774
11,166,975
11,385,699
8,768,589
8,881,521
5,959,375
5,929,125
5,920,875
5.914.250

$172,207.572




10. CAPITAL LEASES

1.

The District has entered into a capitalized lease for equipment. The lease meets the criteria of a
capital lease as defined by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 13, “Accounting for
Leases,” which defines a capital lease generally as one which transfers benefits and risks of
ownership to the lessee.

Capital assets consisting of equipment have been capitalized in the amount of $328309. This
amount represents the present value of the minimum lease payments at the time of acquisition. A
corresponding liability was recorded as a part of Long-Term Liabilities.

The following is a schedule of the future long-term minimum lease payments required under the
capital leases and the present value of the minimum lease payments as of fiscal year end.

Fiscal Y car

Ending June 30, Amount
2004 586,037
2005 17,352

Total 103,389

Less: Amount Representing Interest (2.991)

Present Value of Minimum Lease Payments $100,398

PENSION PLANS

SCHOOL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

The District contributes to the School Employees Retirement System (SERS), a cost-sharing
multiple employer defined benefit pension plan. SERS provides retirement and disability
benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.
Authority to establish and amend benefits is provided by Chapter 3309 of the Ohio Revised
Code. SERS issues a publicly available, stand-alone financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to
the School Emplovees Retirement System, 300 East Broad Street, Suite 100, Columbus. Ohio
43215-3476.

Plan members are required to contribute 9% of their annual covered salary and the District is
required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The current contribution rate is 14% of
annual covered payroll. A portion of the District’s contribution is used to fund pension
obligations with the remainder being used to fund health care benefits; for fiscal year 2003,
8.17% of annual covered salary was the portion being used to fund pension obligations. For
fiscal year 2002, 5.46% of annual covered salary was the portion used to fund pension
obligations. The contribution requirements of plan members and employers are established and
may be amended, up to a statutory maximum amount, by the SERS’ Retirement Board. The
District’s required contributions for penion obligations to SERS for the fiscal years ended June
30, 2003, 2002, and 2001 were $1,113.468, $1,280,455, and $997,086 respectively; 43.5% has
been contnbuted for fiscal year 2003 and 100% for fiscal year 2002 and 2001. $628,656
represents the unpaid contribution for fiscal year 2003.




STATE TEACHERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM

The School District participates in State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio (STRS OChio), a
cost-sharing, multiple employer public employee retirement system. STRS Ohio provides
retirement and disability benefits to members and death and survivor benefits to beneficiaries.
STRS Ohio issues a stand-alone financial report that may be obtained by writing to STRS Ohio,
275 East Broad Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-3371 or by calling (614) 227-4090.

New members have a choice of three retirement plans, a Defined Benefit (DB) Plan, a Defined
Contribution (DC) Plan and a Combined Plan. The DB Plan offers an annual retirement
allowance based on final average salary times a percentage that varies based on vears of service,
or an allowance based on member contributions and eamed interest matched by STRS Ohio
funds times an actuarially determined annuity factor. The DC Plan allows members to place all
their member contributions and employer contributions equal to 10.5% of earned compensation
into an investment account. Investment decisions are made by the member. A member is
eligible to receive a retirement benefit at age 50 and termination of employment. The Combined
Plan offers features of both the DC Plan and DB Plan. In the Combined Plan, member
contributions are invested by the member, and employer contributions are used to fund the
defined benefit payment at a reduced level from the regular DB Plan. DC and Combined Plan
members will transfer to the Defined Benefit Plan during their fifth year of membership unless
they permanently select the DC or Combined Plan. Existing members with less than five years
of service credit as of June 30, 2001, were given the option of making a one time irrevocable
decision 1o transfer their account balances from the existing DB Plan into the DC Plan or the
Combined Plan. This option expired on December 31, 2001. Benefits are established by Chapter
3307 of the Ohio Revised Code.

A DB or Combined Plan member with five or more years credited service who becomes disabled
may qualify for disability benefit. Eligible spouses and dependents of these active members who
die before retirement may qualify for survivor benefits. Members in the DC Plan who become
disabled are entitled only to their account balance. If a member dies before retirement benefits
begin, the member’s designated beneficiary is entitled to receive the member’s account balance.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, plan members were required to contribute 9.3% of their
annual covered salaries. The School District was required to contribute 14%; 13% was the
partion used to fund pension obligations. For fiscal vear 2002, the portion used to fund pension
obligations was 9.5%. Contribution rates are established by the State Teachers Retirement
Board, upon recommendations of its consulting actuary, not to exceed statutory maximum rates
of 10% for members and 14% for employers. Chapter 3307 of the Ohio Revised Code provides
slatutory authority for members and employer contributions.

The School District’s required contributions for pension obligations for the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2003, 2002, and 2001 were $3.277.440, $3.338.853, and $2.808.374 respectively:
81.9% has been contributed for fiscal year 2003 and 100% for fiscal year 2002 and 2001.
$593,088 represents the unpaid contribution for fiscal year 2003.
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12.

13.

POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The District provides comprehensive health care benefits to retired teachers and their dependents
through the State Teachers Retirement Systern (STRS), and to retired non-certified employees
and their dependents through the School Employees Retirement System (SERS). Benefits
included hospitalization, physicians' fees, prescription drugs, and reimbursement of monthly
Medicare premiums. Benefit provision and the obligations to contribute are established by the
Systems based on authority granted by State statute. Both systems are funded on a pay-as-you-go
basis.

For STRS, all benefit recipients are required to pay a portion of health care cost in the form of a
monthly premium. By Ohio law, the cost of coverage paid from STRS funds shall be included in
the employer contribution rate, currently 14% of covered payroll. The Board currently allocates
employer contributions equal to 4.5% of covered payroll to the Health Care Reserve Fund for
which payments for health carc benefits are paid. For the District, this amount equaled
$1.053,463 during the 2003 fiscal year. As of July 1, 2003, eligible benefit recipients totaled
105,300. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, net health care costs paid by STRS were
$434.000.000.

For SERS, coverage is made available to service retirees with ten or more fiscal years of
qualifying service credit, disability, and survivor benefit recipients. Members retiring on or after
August 1. 1989, with less than twenty-five years of service credit must pay a portion of their
premium for health care. The portion is based on years of service up to a maximum of 75% of
the premium.

For 2002 fiscal year, employer contributions to fund health care benefits were 8.54% of covered
payroll. In addition, SERS levies a surcharge to fund health care benefits equal to [4% of the
difference between a minimum pay and the member’s pay, pro-rated for partial service credit.
For fiscal year 2002, the minimum pay has been established at $12,400. The surcharge rate
added to the unallocated portion of the 14% employer contribution rate provides for maintenance
of the asset target level for the health care fund. For the District, this amount equaled $697,215
during the 2003 fiscal year. The number of participants currently receiving health care benefits is
approximately 50,000. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, net health care costs paid by
SERS were $182,946,777.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The District receives significant financial assistance from numerous federal, state and local
agencies in the form of grants. The disbursement of funds received under these programs
generally requires compliance with terms and conditions specified in the grant agreements and is
subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims resulting from such audits could
become a liability of the General Fund or other applicable funds.
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4.

However, in the opinion of management, any such disallowed claims will not have a material
effect on any of the financial statements of the individual fund types included herein or on the
overall financial position of the District as of fiscal vear end.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions: injuries to employees and natural disasters. During
the current fiscal year the District contracted with Indiana Insurance for general liability
insurance with a $2,000,000 aggregate plus excess umbrella of an addivional $1,000,000 limit
covering all employees and volunteers of the District.

Property and Fleet Insurance is provided by Indiana Insurance and property holds a $5,000
deductible and the bus fleet and maintenance vehicles have a $250 deductible and a $1,000,000
automobile lability limit per occurrence.

The Travelers Insurance Company maintains a $20,000 performance bond for the Board
President and Superintendent and maintains a $50,000 public official bond for the Treasurer.
Cincinnati Insurance Company maintains a $30,000 employee dishonesty blanket bond for all
employees.

Settlements have not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the last ten fiscal years.

The District pays the State Workers' Compensation System a premium based on a rate per $100
of salaries. This rate is calculated based on accident history and administrative costs.

The District offers medical and dental on a self-insured basis with third party administration
services provided by Humana, Inc. Monthly premiums for medical coverage are $586.86 for
family coverage or $218.26 for individual coverage. Monthly premiums for dental coverage are
$90.00 for family coverage or $33.00 for individual coverage, The District is responsible for
payment of all claim amounts in excess of the employee payment percentages established in the
plan document.

Vision is offered on a fully insured basis by the District with services provided by VSP (Vision
Service Plan). Monthly premiums for vision are $10.13 for family coverage and $4.69 for

individual coverage. VSP is responsible for payment of all claim amounts as established in the
plan document.
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The liability for unpaid claims cost of $342,179 reported in the general fund at fiscal vear end is
based on the requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 10
which requires that a liability for unpaid claims costs, including estimates of costs relating to
incurred but not reported claims, be reported if information prior to the issuance of the financial
statements indicates thal it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial
statements and that the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated, Changes in the fund's
claims liability amount [or the current year were:

Balance at Current Year Claims Balance at

Beginning of Year Claims Payments End of Year
2002 $32.574 514,093 5494 402 $52,865
2003 252,865 $4,457,349 33,968,035 $542,179

15. STATE SCHOOL FUNDING DECISION

On December 11, 2002, the Ohio Supreme Court issued its latest opinion reparding the State’s
school funding plan. The decision reaffirmed earlier decisions that Ohio's current school-
funding plan is unconstitutional,

The Supreme Court relinquished jurisdiction over the case and directed “...the Ohio General
Assembly to enact a school-funding scheme that is thorough and efficient...”. The District is
currently unable to determine what effect, if any, this decision will have on its future State
funding and its financial operations.

16. ACCOUNTABILITY

The following individual funds had a deficit in fund balance at year end:

Fund Deficit
Special Revenue;
Title VI B 579,782
Title | 6,395
Title V1 114610
Drug-Free Schools 2,865
Public School Preschool 9871
Improving Teacher Quality 3,305
Capital Projects:
Building 3.543 800

The fund deficits resulted from adjustments for accrued liabilities. The general fund is liable for
any deficit in these funds and provides operating transfers when cash is required, not when
accruals occur,

i
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17. FUND BALANCE RESERVES FOR SET-ASIDES

The District is required by State statute to annually set aside in the general fund an amount based
on d statutory formula for the purchase of textbooks and other instructional materials and an
equal amount for the acquisition and construction of capital improvements. Amounts not spent
by year-end or offset by similarly restricted resources received during the year must be held in
cash at year-end and carried forward to be used for the same purposes in future years,

For the current fiscal year end, the District was no longer required to set aside funds in the budget
reserve set-aside, with the exception of refund monies received from the Bureau of Woarkers’
Compensation, which must be spent for specified purposes,

The following cash basis information describes the change in the year end set-aside amounts for
textbooks and capital acquisition. Disclosure of this information is required by State statute.

Capital Budget
Textbooks Acquisition Stabilization Total
set-aside Reserve Balance as of June 30, 2002 (% 306,861 5 0 $85.503 (¥221,168)
Current Y ear Set-aside Feguirement 094 706 094, 706 0 1,989412
Qualified [Msbursements (1,161,033) (994, 706) 1] (2,155, 739)
Current Year Offsets 0 0 0 1]
Set-Aside Reserve Balance as of June 30, 2003 (F473,188) 3 0 185,553 (3 387,505)

Restricted Cash as of June 30, 2003 3 85,593
18. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Interfund transactions at fiscal year end, consisted of the following individual fund receivables
and payables:

Interfund Loan Interfund Loan

Receivable Payable

General Fund 69,138

Special Revenue Fund:

District Managed Student Activity $10,267
Title VI-B 40,742
Title V1 484
Drug-Free Schools 2,768
Public School Preschool [sag?
Improving Teacher Quality 3.300
369,138 £60.138
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19. SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

Listed below are the District’s contracts that had outstanding balances in excess of $100,000 at

year end:
Furniture Focus Corporation $348.091
Voorhis, Slone, Welsh & Crossland 156,488
Westside Paving Contractors 248.370
Total $752,949

20. JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATION

A. The Southwestern Ohio Computer Association (SWOCA) is a jointly governed organization
among a three county consortium of school districts. The jointly governed organization was
formed for the purpose of applying modern technology with the aid of computers and other
electronic equipment to administrative and instructional functions among member districts.
Each of the governments of these schools supports SWOCA based upon a per pupil charge
dependent upon the software package utilized.

The Governing Board of SWOCA consists of six members elected by majority vote of all
charter member schools plus one representative from the fiscal agent. The District has an
equity interest that is explicit and measurable in that the jointly governed agreement
stipulates that the participants have a future claim to the net resources of SWOCA upon
dissolution. The agreement sets forth the method to determine each members’ proportionate
share. Financial information can be obtained from Michael Crumley. who serves as director,
at 3603 Hamilton-Middletown Road, Hamilton, Ohio 4501 1.

B. The Great Oaks Joint Vocational School, a jointly governed organization, is a distinct
political subdivision of the State of Ohio operated under the direction of a Board, consisting
of one representative from each of the thirty-six participating school district’s elected board,
which possesses its own budgeting and taxing authority. To obtain financial information
write to the Great Oaks Vocational School, Mr. John Wahle, Chief Financial Officer, at 3254
East Kemper Road, Cincinnati, Ohio 45241.

C. The District is a participant in the Jewell Education Foundation, which is a jointly governed
educational foundation established to benefit the school districts in Warren County. The
Foundation was created to promote and assist in funding through soliciting grants and
charitable contributions for distributions to member educational institutions of participating
school districts. The governing board is made up of the Warren County Vocational School
District Superintendent, one member of the 1999 Warren County Vocational School District
Board of Education, not on the current board, and one member submitted by each
participating school district. The District made no financial contribution to the Foundation.
Financial information can be obtained from the director of planned giving, Rick Wood, al
P.0). Box 854, Lebanon, Ohio 45036.
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Mason Cily Scloo] Distried

Scheduke of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budper and Acmal (Non-GAAF Hudgetory Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Lieneral
Fll]Hl
Origmal Final Varance from
Hudgel Hodpet Metinl Final Budpet
Revenpes:
Tanes RA2 583 240 £34.307 510 34200, 375 £2,865
Tuition amd Fecs 4,738,554 4. 838,781 4975, 186 136405
Interest 322,590 330,008} 328,699 §.090
Inteegovernmmental 22362766 234792094 23,479,507 213
Cither Bevenwes 1520431 1,564 976 1,596,358 31,382
Total Revenues fil, 527 5890 64,420,561 54,600,125 174,564
Expeniditires:
Cuarent:
Instruction:
Bepular
Salaries and Wages 17,006,167 17,563,760 17,534 256 29,504
Fringe Benefiis 4,654,145 4 B9 404 4 800,363 90,531
Perchased Services 56,331 65,132 S8, 001 T
Materials and Supplies LOIL283 1361272 1,044 D86 317,186
Capatal Crutly 97,743 104,035 100,814 3221
Capital Cutkay = Replacement 8325 Q14 8,387 1,137
Other Expendinores lﬁS'L 1,749 1.711 _ 18
Todal Regular 22 830,653 § 21 996 560 13547918 44 E B4R
Speoial
Salanes and Wages 2947550 1364 405 3040152 324253
Frmmge Benefits B29 924 969 564 [RER 113 567
Purchased Services 108,714 112,214 112,139 B3
Materals and Supplics 53.62E 55,390 55,313 #i
Capital Outlay 13 408 13,852 13,829 23
Chher Expenditures 147 900 152,746 | 52 547 159
Taotal Special 4,100,124 4668180 4370067 438,213
Vocational
Salaries and Wapges L] 1.783 0 1,781
Purchased Services 24 239 25,000 25000 . Q
Total Vocational 24239 i 26,783 25,000 1,783
Crdver
Purchased Services 174,556 180,086 180,040 44
Total Osher 174,556 180,086 1 81040 46
Suppor] Services:
Pupil
Zalaries and Wapes 2235758 2518487 2505598 212489
Fringe Benefits 648,065 745347 AeE A2 THE22
Puschased Services 296,122 291 821 2R4,797 7024
Materzals and Supplies 51024 T0 184 65,004 14,180
Capital Outly 68261 EE.795 0,405 18393
Total Pupil 3291210 3,723 Er_"I-E__ 3,394 630 120,008
Comtinoed
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Mason Citv Scheol District

Schedule of Revenunes, Fxpendimees and Changes in Fund Balance
Budgpel and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basts)

Fur the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Ceperal
. Fund
{rriginal Tanal Varianee from
Budpet Hudpe Actual Final Budget
Imstrugtional Staft
Salarizs and Wages 3,048,351 3262471 3,044,100 118,371
Fringe Benefils Q05 540 1,199 547 LAET, 126 172,421
Purchased Services 42 870 E5A0E 44217 41,191
Materials and Supplies 163412 171,886 168,546 3,340
Capital Outlay 44,242 46,665 45,632 1,033
Capital Catlay - Replacemsem 2,103 2169 2,169 0
Crther Expenditares 340 R, 162 3508 4 654
Total Instructionzl Staff 4,300,199 4,776,308 4,435,298 341010
Baird of Eshucation
Salaries and Wages 11315 1 5 000 11,670 3,330
Fringe Benefits 2 A6E 3,100 2,152 348
Purchased Services 13,447 13,984 [3.869 115
Materials and Supplies 06 10} G4l |
Cher Expenditures 10,456 13 500 MILE15 2685
Total Beard of Education 38012 45 684 39,205 6,479
Admimistration
Salaries and Wages 2716371 2812036 2RI 025 11
Fringe Benefits K93, 748 946,903 92827 25076
Purchased Services 93 674 133452 100,743 32309
Materials and Suppliss 15,692 38,528 36813 1715
Capital Crutlay 4345 i53n 4 007 10,374
Capatal Crutlay - Replacement 3,791 4,700 3910 790
Uther Expenditurss 120,327 126,615 124,107 2.508%
Total Administration 3 RE2 448 4077605 a N0 422 73,183
Fizeal
Salarses and Wages 409 747 423 464 422 620 R4
Fringe Benefits 136,525 145388 140,514 4574
Purchased Services 31,935 36,056 52,918 3,118
Mazerials and Supplies 20,543 22 11% 21,495 621
Capital Chutlay 2,234 1.0040 2,304 )
Capital Chutlay - Replacement 14,671 15230 15,132 Gk
Other Expenditures 576,040 596,343 395,075 1,208
Totn] Fiscal 1,192 904 1.241.600 1,230,381 11:21%
DPusiness
Salarics and Wages 129495 136,102 133,563 2,539
Fringe Benefits 45432 47 141 44,850 182
Purchased Services 15,204 16,754 16,404 150
Materials and Supplics 4 0i1 507 5017 o
Capital Cutlay 10,784 11,124 11,123 I
Capital Outlay - Replacement 1493 1,540 1,540 1]
Other Expenditires Ta0 o1 [ )
lotal Busmess 208 B49 219,069 215410 1,659
Continued
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Inscn City Schol District

Schedule of Revenues, Expendimres and Changes in Fund Balance
Budpet and Actual (Mon-GAAP Budpetary Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Creneral
_Fund L =
Crigimal Fimal Variance from
Budget Budget Actual _ Final Budget
Salaries and Wages 2,750,241 B4l 058 2,836 644 © 4394
Fringe Benefits ROTAT2 ax7 11 925 hGE 1,443
Purchazed Services T.ET4.9R7 L .066300 2965310 a1
Materials and Supplies 470,808 46 300 483 602 4019
Capital Crutlay 154,450 245 805 15%.302 B, 503
Capital Outlay - Replacement 3836 39357 3837 0
Total Operaticns and Mamtenance 7,151,884 TATS13 1376573 03,940
Pupil Trmsportation
Salaries and Wages 2417561 L5058 ,493 2493513 14,580
Frisige Benefits Thll 598 FAR 384 T4 403 53,801
Purchased Services 381,178 400,173 193,153 7,020
Materials and Supplies 43% 859 464,263 452,647 11616
Capital Outly 123,250 128,655 127,131 1,524
Tatal Pupil Tramsportation 421455 4360068 4,250,937 119,031
Central
Salaries and Wages h2%.623 1,058,925 Q58 H29 106,096
Fringe Benefits 281 744 301,208 I 9110 208
PFurchazed Services 78,742 To8,122 FlL IR 08,056
Materials and Sopplies 440 06E 456 293 453,893 2,402
Capital Cutlay 253,006 272667 200,955 11,712
Capital Cutlny - Replacement 31,878 33,3 32,879 il5
Other Expenditures 3,361,745 1875687 3,467,360 408,327
Total Central 5,986,806 £,796 298 6,174,592 621406
Salaries and Wages 11,546 12,348 12,321 27
Fringe Benefits G711 851K 6,922 1,596
Purchased Services 18,736 12526 19,325 3201
Materials and Supplies 17,363 18,40 17,909 305
Other Expenditures 3799 4 50 3,918 586
Total Non- Instractional Services 5,555 pﬁé@ﬂ_ 601,305 5,905
Extracumricalar Activities
Saluries and Wapes GHS 625 Tel 427 717,479 43,048
Fringe Bencfits 125 4%6 138,352 129,439 5,013
Purchased Services B 055 Q0,105 58,346 1,759
Muleriaks and Supplics 15,254 25805 15,733 1072
Capital Chutlay BR435 103 80 91,213 12,587
Other Expenditures 85,505 0 204 1.772 432
Tolal Extracumontar Activitics 1,018 970 1,128,653 1,050,952 77711
Other Expenditures 1,216,188 1254 542 1254397 445
Capital Outlay 218,049 350,374 225931 124443
Tanal Expembitures A EITA21 &4,392. 507 61696378 — 2 6%0, 2_‘!_

Continued
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Mason City School District

Scheduls of Revenucs, Ex;ml:!ilums el Chanpes m Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Mon-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Fizcal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Excess of Revenues Over
{Under} Expenditres

Orher financing sourees (uses):
Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets
Advances In
Advances (Out)

Transfers In
Transfers (Ot

Towl Oher Financing Soarces (Tses)
Mel Change m Fund Balance

Fund Balance Beginning of Year (includes
prioT year encumbrances appropriated)

Fund Balance End of % ear

Creneral
Fund

Crriginal Final Varianee frim

Fudpet Fuclpet Agtual Final Budpel
17104659 2R.054 2,903 747 2.875,693
Ball 258 1,008 LA
77,753 81,836 21,636 L]
(142,013 [147,087) {146,472) s
66T 70,000 Fih,000 1]
(1,085 E85] (1,020,000} 1L L20,004) (F
(L5011 (1,014,593} (1. 105.828) Th5
627958 (1,0B6,537) free91y IET6 A58
15357436 15357436 15,357,436 0
515085 304 514,270,897 517,147,355 B2 ETE A58
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MASON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 340, 2003

BUDGETARY PROCESS

All funds, except agency funds, are legally required to be budgeted and appropriated. The major documents
prepared are the tax budget, the appropriations resclution and the certificate of estimated resources which
are prepared on the budgetary basis of accounting. The tax budget demonstrates a need for existing or
increased tax rales. The certificate of estimated resources establishes a limit on the amount that the Board of
Education may appropriate. The appropriation resolution is the Board’s authorization to spend resources and
sets annual limits on expenditures plus encumbrances at the level of control selected by the Board. The legal
level of control has been established by the Board at the fund and function level. Any budgetary
modifications at this level may only be made by resolution of the Board.

The certificate of estimated resources may be amended during the year if projected increases or decreases in
revenue are identified by the District Treasurer. The amounts reported as the original budgeted amounts on
the budgetary statements reflect the amounts on the certificate of estimated resources when the original
appropriations were adopted. The amounts reported as the final budgeted amounts on the budgetary

statements reflect the amounts on the final amended certificate of estimated resources issued during the
fiscal year 2003.

The appropriation resolution is subject to amendment by the Board throughout the vear with the restriction
that appropriations cannot exceed estimated resources. The amounts reported as the original budgeted
amounts reflect the first appropriation resolution for that fund that covered the entire vear, including
amounts automatically carried forward from prior years. The amounts reported as the final budgeted
amounts represent the final appropriation amounts passed by the Board during the year.

While the District is reporting financial position, results of operations and changes in fund balance on the
basis of generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), the budgetary basis as provided by law is based
upon accounting for certain transactions on a basis of cash receipts, disbursements and encumbrances. The
Combined Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget (Non-GAAP
Basis) and Actual presented on the budgetary basis to provide a meaningful comparison of actual results
with the budget. The major differences between the budget basis and GAAP basis are as follows:

l. Revenues are recorded when received in cash (budget basis) as opposed to when susceptible to
accrual (GAAP basis).

b3

Expenditures are recorded when paid in cash (budget basis) as opposed to when the liability is
incurred (GAAP basis).

Lad

I‘Encumbrﬁnces are treated as expenditures for all funds (budget basis) rather than as a reservation of
fund balance for governmental fund types and expendable trust funds (GAAP basis).

4. Advances in and advances out are operating transactions (hudget basis) as opposed to balance sheet
lransactions.

o
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The following table summarizes the adjustments necessary to reconcile the GAAP basis statements to the
budgetary basis statements {or the general fund.

Net Change in Fund Balance

General
GAAP Basis 52.604.677
Met Adjustment for Revenue Accruals 3.718.281
Net Adjustment for Expenditure Accruals (3,739,949
Encumbrances {(793,090)
Budget Basis $1,789.919
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Mason City School District
Comhbining Balznce Sheet

Monmajor Governmental Funds

June 30, 2003

Assets:

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments

Receivables:
Taxes
Accounts
Intergovernmental

Total Asscis

Liabilities and Fund Balances:

Liabilities:

Accounts Payvable

Acerued Wages and Benefits
Compenszated Absences
Interfund Pavable

Deferred Revenue

Total Ligbilities

Fund Balances:
Reserved for Encumbrances

Reserved for Property Tax Advances
Linreserved, Undesignated, Reponed in:

Special Revenue Funds
Capital Projects Funds

Toal Fund Balances

Total Liabilitics and Fund Balances

Monmajor Nonmajor Total
Special Capital Menimajor
Revenue Projects Giovernmental
Funds Funds A Funds

$2,131,524 §2.072.475 54,203,999
0 461,138 461,158
E,668 0 8,668
287,717 i 287,717
2,427,909 2,533,633 4,961,542
54,856 0 54 856
165,926 1] 165,926
4,667 i 4,667
69,128 ] 69,134
244 531 395,105 639,636
539,118 395,105 934,223
198,408 1] 198, 408
i 66,053 660,053
1,690,293 0 |6, 293
0 2071475 2072475
1,888,721 2,138,528 4027319
12,427 509 32,533,633 34,901,542

L
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Mason City School Districe

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Monmajor Governrmental Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Revenues:

Taxes

Tunion and Fees
Investment Exmings
Interpovernmental
Extracurmcular Activities
Other Revenucs

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current;
Instroction:
Regular
Special
Vocational
Support Services:
Fupil
[narructional Staff
School Administration
Fiscal
Businecss
Crperations and Maintenance
Pupil Transportation
Central
Community Scrvices
Extracurricular Actvitics

Tatal Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expendilures

Other Financing Sources {Uses):
Transfers In

Total Other Finencing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance Beginning of Y car

Fund Balance End of Year

Nommajor Mammajar Total
Special Capital MNonmajor
Revenue Projects Governmental
Funds Funds Funds

50 $481,285 H481,285

33474 ] 33,474

1,862 10,343 12,205

1,161,200 134,001 1.296,120

349,057 0 549,057

075430 545,754 I.621,1%4

2,721,032 1,272,293 3,993,325

374 812 BE. 240 f63,052

AR 128 ] 482 128

23 908 1] 23,908

30,949 { 30,949

1002 30 ] 102,301

0 1,032 1,032

0 6,014 6,014

26 1] 26

60302 0 360,392

a9.22% ] D2g

|03 028 1] 103,028

428246 il 428 246

216,164 G422 276,586

2,331,183 155,708 2 486,891

JHO B4 1.0 16,5485 1,306,434
1,050,000 1] FLOS0,00H

N 1,050, (K 0 1,050,000

1,439 849 1,116,585 2556434

448 942 1,021,843 1,470,885

51,888,791 32,138,528 $4.027.319




Mason Cisy School District
Cembining Balance Sheet
Monmajor Special Revenoe Funds
June 30, 2003

Assets:
Equity in Pooled Cash and [nvestments
Feceivables:

Accounts

Intergovermmentil

Tetal Assers

Lizhilities and Fund Balances:
Liabilities:

Accounts Fayahle

Acerued Wages and Benehits
Compenzated Absences
Interfund Pavable

Dieferred Revenue
Total Linbilities

Fund Balances:
Feserved for Encumbrances

Unreserved, Undesipmated, Reporied in:

Special Revenue Funds
Total Fund Balances

Total Liabalities and Fund Balances

Dhstrict Managed
Public Communtty Smdent Auxiliary Career
Schoal Suppon Services Activity Services Development
135,795 51,644,120 526813 £194,726: F519
1,641 0 7,007 i} 0
0 4,000 0 L] ]
137,456 1,649,020 35 840 194,726 520
6,060 5,967 1,975 19260 0
o 11,050 0 27,07 0
0 3,665 0 i} 0
LH ¥ 10,267 0 0
[ 1) 4] 0 ]
£, P64 20,682 12,242 fi, 44k ]
5% 1 11,533 2152 155455 0
[ 23,796 1,616,805 _ 21 M6 {27,169} 529
I 30487 1,625,338 23,598 128,286 529
$137 456 21,649,020 335,840 $194,720 £520
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Management CineMet SchoolMer School
Infermation Metwork Profiessional Safe School Conflizt
Swstem Connectivity Development Ohio Reads Halp Line Management Eisenlwwer

518,793 52454 &il 3,770 5965 $31,249 50

il 0 0 i [ { i}

H 4] ] ] L {} 1]

18,753 2454 ] 3,770 965 3,249 0

] N] { 1] L 0 0

927 0 0 0 L1 0 0

1,002 0 fl 4] 0 0 0

0 [¥] 0 4] 4] 0 H

] 1] ] 0 0 { H

1,929 ] 0 0 0 {l ]

¥ 2454 0 0 0 0 0

1h,a64 0 ] 3770 955 1,249 0

I6,564 2454 i 3,770 965 1,249 0

18,703 $2,454 a0 53,770 5955 $3,249 50

= {continued)
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Mazon City School Dismrict
Combining Balance Sheel
Monmajor Special Revenue Funds
Jume 30, 2003

Mzsels
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments
Receivables:

Accounts

[mterpovernmental

Total Asseis

Liabalitiez and Fund Balances:
Liabilities:

Accounts Payable

Accreed Wages and Benefits
Compensated Absences
Interfind Pavzhle

Deferred Revenue

Toral Liabilites

Fund Balances:
Reserved for Encumbrances

Unreserved, Undesignated, Reported in:

Special Revenue Funds
Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilitizs and Fund Belances

Vocational
Title VI-B Education Refuges lmpact Title 1 Title V1

£30.976 5503 £3.000 $5316 50

0 0 0 ] 0

185,557 1] i 15,412 5,521

216,333 593 3,000 15,928 5,521

] 492 0 a 0

23,034 0 0 14,075 11,126

1 0 o 0 0

L LLSPE 4] { ] 484

172,539 1 D §,248 5,521

206,315 4492 k] 22,323 17,131

17,694 533 0 0 0
(57.476) (432} 3,000 {6, 395 {11.,610)
{79, TE2) 101 3,000 {6,395) (17,610}

5216,533 =, £593 33,000 315,928 55,521

a0



Total

Public Improving Monmajor
Drug-Fres School Teacher Continuous Special Revenue
Schools __ Preschool E-Rate Cruality Improvement Funds
2077 Sl Bol.625 f150 5333 52,131,524
i 0 0 1] 1 5668
8.546 5,383 0 60,790 1,608 287,717
10,623 5,383 6,625 il G400 1.961 2,427,909
184 0 0 0 0 54,856
1,900 8,294 1] E.250 ] 165,924
{ ] 0 0 Lt 4,667
2,768 1,577 o 13,300 0 6%, 134
8,346 5,383 0 42,686 1,608 244,531
13 488 15,254 0 04,245 1,608 3IRNIE
1,033 i &02 150 ] FO8, 408
i2.80%) (5.871) 59E22 {3.455) 353 1,600,293
2,865) (5.871) B,625 (3.305) 353 1,688,791
210,623 $5381 560,605 560,94 51,961 $2.427,908

ol



Mason Citw School District

Combining Statcment of Revenses, Expendilures and Changes in Fund Balance

Monmaior Special Revenue Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 20073

Revenues:

Tuition and Fees
Investment Eamings
Intergovernmental
Eximsurmicular Actvities
Crher Revemaes

Total Revenues

Fxpenditures;
Current:
Instruction
Repular
Special
Vocational
Suppon Services;
Pupal
Instructional Stafl
Business
Orperations and Mamtenince
Pupil Transperiation
Central
Community Services
Extracurricular Activities

Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Llses):
Teanslers In

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net "_1‘l|:|]'lg|: in Fund Balance
Fund Balance Beginning of Year

Fund Balance: End of ¥ ear

District Managed

Public Community Student Auxiliary Career

School Support Services Activity Services Development
220 333,454 0 50 5il
35 @ 0 1,823 0
1] 4,000 1 403,224 0,356
346,897 7.562 194,198 ] 1
B7.252 BT7.745 10,393 1] {1
4342348 S24.061 204 50 405,047 2,356
374,050 66 R41 1] a 1]
i 5216 0 0 0
] il L] t 0,147
i 6873 0 0 i
0 20.5K7 0 a 1]
26 f 1] Q {
149 353042 0 Lk ]
1,731 7.458 0 0 i
0 ER T 0 0 n
2,841 5,849 1] 377,593 0
26,287 3368 1 B, S04 ] ]
And 954 472,939 186,509 377.993 9,147
20,294 451,122 [E,082 27054 200
0 1,050,000 0 0 0
] 1,050,000 0} U] 0
20,294 1.501,122 IB082 27054 209
101,193 127216 53516 16,232 320
$130,487 §1,678.33% §23.59% $128,286 5529




{znagement CmeNet SchoolMet School
Informativn Metwork Pro [essional Safe School Coaflic
System Conneclivity Development Cthin Reads Help Line Munggement Eiscnbhamaner
30 50 S0 0 0 50 0
1] 0l i1 0 ¥ 1 o
28,783 21,000 4.600 T A00 5,572 33,500 [t
L+ n o L] 0 [t} I
4] ] 1] 0 N 0 ] 0
28783 21,040 4. 60H) 5500 5,572 33,500 ]
1] 0 i 9127 L] 13,545 ]
] 1 0 1] 4] 0 o
] i 0 4] 1] i ]
0 0 LU 4] [ ] 0
1) 0 G851 3561 0 1.433 L]
i 0 0 4] [H] f 0
0 0 i 0 7331 il 4]
i 0 a 4] [+ i 4]
7309 18,546 0 0 1] il [H]
0 0 0 (4] [H] 0 Zl6
0 0 L] [4] 0 B o Ee s o A
37,308 18,546 49,851 12,684 7,331 13978 216
(8,526) 245 {5,251) {3,15%] {1,759) {1.478) [21&)
0 0 ] [ 4] Q 4]
-0 0 il [ 1] 0 O
{B.524]) 2454 (5,251) {3,18H) {1,759 {147E) (216}
25,390 0 5251 6,958 2.7 4,927 216
516,564 52454 30 83770 065 £3.249 0
(eontmuecd}
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Mason City School District

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expendituress and Changes in Fund Bolance
Fonmejor Bpecial Revene Funds

For the Fiseal Yerr Ended Junc 30, 2003

Vocational

Title ¥1-B Education Refugee [mpact Titlz 1 Title V1
.R EVEDes]
Tuition and Fees b1} 50 S0 S0 S0
Tnwestment Earnings il 0 4] i 0
Intergovernmental 366,157 14,609 3058 63,358 16,744
Extracurricular Activities 1 Q 1] 0 1]
Ciber Revenues 0 0 4] il 1]
Tnal Revenues 366,157 14,605 3058 631,358 36,744
Expenditures:
Current;

Instructinn:

Repular 0 1] ] i 47,80
Special 4299562 1] 1] 46,550 1]
Vocational 0 14,761 i il 1]
Support Services:
Fupil 3675 1] 1] o 0
Instructinal Staft 11,211 0 1] 0 4350
Business 0 0o n ] 0
Operations and Maintenance 4] i 1] ] 1]
Fupil Transportation 4] 1] 0 0 0
Central ] il 0 L] 1]

Community Services RN 0 0 24Tl 460

Extracurncular Activities 4] i et 0 {
Total Expenditures 475497 14,761 1] 55421 48,534
Excess of Revenues Cver (Under) Expendimres {109,340 {152} 3058 7,937 (12,080
Oiher Financing Sources (Lses):

Transfers In 1 LAl 0 ] 4]
Total Other Financing Sources {1lses) 0 4] 0 i 1] 0
Met Change in Fund Balance {100 340) {152 3,058 7.937 {12,090%
Fund Halance Beginning of Year 29 558 53 [58) 114,332) 480
Fund Bulance End of Year sl (579,782} 5101 53,1040 (56,395 {311,610H

L




Tol

Publiz lmproving Mommajor
Drug-Free School Teache Comtinusus Sprcial Revenue
Schools Preschool E-Rate Cality ___ Improvement Frands

1] il 50 30 30 533474

0 1] il 1] [ (1

11,058 18,002 55.263 59555 12,970 1,861.20%

0 ] a (] o 540057

i i 1] i D 075 430

11,058 18.002 55,263 S.555 12,870 2721032

0 0 0 35,555 7500 574.R12

[ ] 0 1] 1] 482,128

0 0 0 1] 0 23,508

20451 0 0 0 0 30,045

4] 27873 Q 2T 305 L] 102,301

0 ] ] 0 0 24

1] 0 0 ] o 360,392

0 u 0 0 0 D229

0 0 43,508 0 0 103,028

117 ] ] 0 /] 428244

0 i 0 i 0 216164
22,168 27473 43,508 62,860 7.800 _ 2331183

{11,110 (9.871) 11,785 (3,305) 3 L 159,849

4] 0 ] 0 4] 1500

1] 0 0 0 B 1 {050,000

(11,110 [SETT) 11,755 {3 .305) 5,170 1,430,849

E245 0 4B BT0 ] (4EIT) 448,542

(51565 159.871) 560,625 i53,305) £353 51588791




Mason City School Distrizt
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds
June 30, 2003

Assets;
Equiry in Pooled Cash and [nvestments
Feceivables:

Taxes

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances:
Liahilities:

Deferred Revenue

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
Reserved for Property Tax Advances

Unreserved, Undesignated, Reported in:

Capital Projects Funds
Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balznces

Total
Monmajor
Capital SchoolMet Capital Projects

Privdects Plus Funds
52,072,452 $23 £2.072475
461 158 { 461,158
2,533,610 23 2,533,633
305,103 0 305105
395,105 0 305,105
66,053 0 £ 033
2,072,452 23 2072475
2,138,505 __ 23 2 138,528
$2.533.610 $23 $2,533,633

(1]



Mazon City School Distnct

Combining Statement of Bevenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Monmajor Capital Projects Funds
For the Fiscal ¥eor Ended June 30, 20003

Fevenues:

Faxnes

Investment Eamings
Intergovernmental
Other Revenues

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction:
Rogular
Support Services:
Schoo!l Administration
Fiscal
Extracurricular Activities

Total Expenditares
Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance Beginning of Year

Fund Balance End of Year

Tiotal
M omrmajor
Capital SchoolMet Capital Projects
Projects Plus Funds
5481285 i1t 881,285
0,345 { 10,343
46,450 BE 461 134,911
645,754 & 45,754
1,183,832 nE 461 1,272,293
0 A8, 240 E8,240
1032 o 1,032
6014 { 014
60,422 0 60,422
67468 85,240 155,708
1,116,364 g 1,116,585
1,022,141 {198 1.021,943
£2,138.505 $23 $2.138.528
Ll
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Mazon Ciry School District
Combinmg Satement of Net Assels
Monmajer Enterprise Funds

fune 30, 2003

Uniform

Fomd Schaol
Service Supplies Latchkey Tonal
Assets:
Equity i Pooled Cash and Investments $26 608 845,713 F46,035 356,356
Receivables:

Accounts 25 K52 i} 17 25 Ra9
Inventory (0. 916 0 ] 6l 916
Total Current Asscts 351,376 45,713 46,052 443 141
Depreciable Capital Assets, Net 1,360,561 ] 0 L 364,561
Total Assets 1,711,937 45,713 46,052 I, B03, 702
Liabilities:

Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable 5406 15,325 TiE 24, 4649
Accrued Wages and Benefits 165481 ] 38,399 203,880
Compensated Absences G5 0 ] 015
Deferred Revenue 30,125 1] 0 30,125
Total Currene Liabilities 204 927 I5.323 39,137 239,389
Long-Term Liuabilities:

Compengated Absences 37564 K] 0 37.564
Total Liabilities 242491 15,3325 39137 296,953
Met Assets:

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 1.360.561 0 0 1,300,561
Unrestricted 108 885 30,388 0,915 146,188
Total Met Assels F1. 460 446 LINEE $6,915 51,506,749

a3




Mason City School District

Combining Ststement of Revenues, Fxpenses and Changes in Fund Net Assels
Monmajor Enterprise Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 31, 2003

nitiorm
Fuvond Schaol
_ &orvice Supnlics Latchkey Tuatal
Operating Revenues;
Lales §2.083.843 bk $0 $2.083,843
Charges for Services il [ 342 6E2 342 683
Other Revenues 108 364 0 (¥ 108, 564
Total Operating Revenwes 2192207 [ 342,083 2,534, 8M)
Operating Expenses:
Personal Services 1,223,508 0 JEQ0RS 1,512,502
Contractual Services 40,609 H 25,250 65,859
Materials and Supplies 1,263,564 34,797 22,585 1320946
Depreciation 91,231 0 1] 01,231
Oiher Expenses 2658 o 244 3,102
Total Operating Expenses 2.621.570 34,797 337,363 2,993,750
Operating Income {Loss) {129.363) (34,797} 5320 {458,840}
Mon-Operating Revenues (Expenses);
Investiment Eamnings 2,661 1] n 2661
Donated Commodities 152,827 ] 1] 153,827
Operating Grants ITAT6 e 0 0 179,476
Total Nen-Operating Revenues (Expenses) e 0 i} 334 064
Income {Loss) Before Conmbutions & Transters (494,309 (34,797} 5320 (123,876
Capital Grants and Contributions 744,342 0 ] 744,342
Change in Mot Assers £549 043 (34,797} 5320 520466
Met Assets Beginning of Year B19.503 65,185 1,595 E86.283
Met Assets End of Year 1. 469 446 330,188 $6_.9_] E_ $1,5006, 749




Mason City Schont Dhistrct

Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Nonmajer Enterprise Funds

For the Fiscal Yenr Ended June 30, 2003

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash Received from Customers

Cash Payments to Emplayees

Cash Payments 1o Suppliers

Cazh Payments for Claims

(her Cash Payments

Met Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Moncapital Financing Acuvities:
Orperating Grams Received
Payments 1o Chher Funcs

Met Cash Provided (Used) by Moncopitzl Financing Activitics

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Pavments for Capital Acgquisitions

Met Cash Provided (Used) by Capilal md
Related Financing Activities

Cush Flows from Investing Activitics:
Eurmings on Investments

tet Cash Provided (Used) by Cash Flows from [nvesting Activitise
Met Increase (Deciense) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash ard Cash Equivalents Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents End of Year

Feconcilintion of Operating Income (Losz) to
et Cush Frovided (Used) by Operating Activities
Operating Income {Loss)
Adjustments:
Depreciation
Donated Comodities
Changes in Assels & Liabilities:
{Increase) Decrease in Receivables
{Inerense) Decrease in Inventory
{Increase) Decrease in Other Assets
Increase (Decrease) in Payables
Incrense { Decrease) in Accrued Liahilitics
Increase { Decrease) in Deferred Revenue

et Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activitics
Schedule of Nomamsh Copitel Activities:

Dnering the fiscal year, the Food Scervice Fumd
recerved contributed food commeditics valued al

Lniform
Fead School
Service Supplics Latchkey Tmal
$2,170,800 50 534684 ¥2507.70
(1,176,553) 0 {272,130y (1,448 685)
£1,163,472) (19472} (47291} (1,230,235}
1] L] L] 4]
(2,658 0 300y (2.9358)
{171,795 (15472 27.120 £164,147)
179 476 0 0 170476
0 0 {2.500) 2,506
179,476 w0 {2.500) 176,976
[37.495) L] 0 [37.495)
[37.495) 0 1 (37.495)
2661 o 0 2,661
2661 0 0 2,661
(27,153) {19472y 24.620 (22 005)
221,761 65,183 20415 374,301
264608 45713 46035 356,356
{429, 363) (34,797} £330 {458 840
21,231 { d] 01,231
152,827 { £l 152 827
[21.295) i 4,158 (17,137
(27.56T) 0 0 (27,587)
9.238 (] 2,549 11,787
3,261 15328 ol [g,204
37,795 a 14,405 $2.200
12,0078 ] 0 12078
[5171.795) (515472) 527,120

[$164,147)

$152 827

d0



Masom City School Distdcr

Stmemenl of Changes In Assets and Lishilities
Agency Fumnd

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Student
Activity
Beginning Ending
Balance Addin ons Dreductions Balamse
Asgets:
Restricted Cash and Investments 376473 5128484 50 S204.057
Receivihles:

Acoounts ] 5060 0 S0
Total Asseis 16473 [ 28,984 0 205 457
I.tahilsmies:

Aceouits Pavable il 1,715 i 1,715
Oher Liabilities Tad73 128,484 1.215 203,742
Total Linbtlities 76473 134,199 1,215 205457

Hection 125

Insurance
Beginning Ending
Balance Addditions Deductions Balance

Assets:
Equity in Pooled Cash and lovestments S5 105 T8,915 in 24 044
Total Assels 15,10% B935 0 24,044
Liahilities;
Other Linbilities 15,100 2,935 B B 24,044
Total Liabilities 15,100 B35 4 24,044

Total All Apency Furnls

Beoinning Endmg
Elnhee Additions Deductions ~_ Balance
Asscls:
Equity in Pooled Cash and Invesiments 01,582 137,419 i} 229001
Receivables:

Adcoumis 4] RHIV ] S
Total Assets 91,582 137.019 0 229.501
Liahilitics:

Accounts Payvable 1l 1,715 i 1,715
Qiher Liahilities 91,382 137,419 1215 227, TEG
Testal Liabilities 501 582 £139,134 $1.215 F229,501
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Mazam City Schonl District

Schedule of Revenes, Expenchitures and Changes m Fund Balance

Budzxet and Actual (Non-GAAP Budpetary Basis)
For the Fiszul Yeor Ended June 30, 2003

Revenues:

Interest

Extrucurricular Activities
Other Eevenues

Total Revemics

Expenditures;
Current:
Instruction:
Regular

Sularies ond Wages
Fringe Benefits
Purchased Services
Materials and Supplies
Other Expendiiures

Total Begular
Sapport Services:
Instrugtional Staff
(rther Expenditures

Total Instrectional Swall

Operations and Maintenanee
Chher Expenditares

Totul Operatons and Maintenance

Pupil Transporation
Chlier Expenditures

Total Pupil Transportation
Mon- Instructional Services

Salaries and Wages

Fringe Benefits

Purchazed Services

Other Expenditares

Total Mon- Instructional Services

E sz s
Purchased Services
(rther Expenditures
Total Extracursicular Activities
Total Expenditures

Met Chanee in Fund Balanee

Fumd Balunce Beginming of Year (includes
pricer vear encimbrances opproprinted)

Fund Balance End of Year

Fublic
Schonl Support
S - Fund
Omiginal Final Wariance from
Budpet Budpet Actual _ Final Budget
537 539 Fag 50
330,646 342,034 346 807 3003
82316 82 405 B, 362 3.8367
Lo AA30N. 425 468 433,298 7,830
2416 2,830 2414 414
213 213 213 0
5,764 G0 5,759 241
8,137 2119 £ 130 EE
365,113 382131 364 837 17,294
AB1,663 400,203 381353 18,7400
Joue = 200 ] K
IR 200 0 2400
1% 1,100 19 1,081
19 1,104 19 1,081
2183 3,000 2,181 419
2153 3000 2,181 819
723 722 Ta2 0
11 111 111 0
270 270 Z70 0
1,73% 4238 1,738 2,500
2.843 3.341 2541 2,500
1521 7.910 7515 Ki"L
- 19677 23,042 19661 338
27,198 30,952 27176 377
413,904 440 BEG 413,570 27316
(207 {15.418) 19,728 35,146
102,406 102,406 02406 i
§101.499 $HEUEE £122,134 $35.146

72



Mason Cily School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Charges in Fand Balance
Pudget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetury Basis)

o the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Community

Services
Fund e
Ungenak Final Yarance from
Budget Bt Actanl Final Budpet
Revenues:
Tuitien and Fees L1401 531,173 333454 b ] |
Extracurricalar Activities 333 E.001 7562 {39}
Other Revenues 16,752 1.527.743 RT7.745 {1 0% 005}
Totan] Revenues !_S_,-.I?.i r | Gae GAT 419 18] (1.047,756)
Expendinzres:
Current:
Instruction:
Eegulor
Salnries and Wages 14,287 &7.304 43047 24,2587
Frings Benchits 220 12,345 6.633 5712
Purchased Services B7 7500 262 T.638
Marerials and Supplies 5,003 31013 15075 15,018
Urheer Expenthiures 1 055 4,328 3,178 1,650
Toin] Regular T * 1\ -1 122,850 G155 34.69F
Special
Materials amal Supplies 1 E0G 10,301 5443 AR5
Tevn] Specanl 1,&06 10,301 5443 4 K58
Support Services:
Pugil
Salagics and Wajres 412 2,963 1,241 1,722
Frange Benchts &l By 1 &b ddi
Matenals and Supphivs 133 552 4M 151
{Hher Expenditures 3,092 12050 12,024 1
Total Pupil 4,597 16,185 13,851 234
I ional Staff
Balaries and Wages 4028 19,588 12136 Az
Fringe Benelits 350 1,225 1,054 171
Purchased Services 1,050 3574 3,163 411
Materiols and Supplies 1,346 4,250 4056 16
Capital Cutlay i 154 194 Q
Total Instructicoal Staff G.E3E 25,831 20,603 B8
Crperatiens and Maintenance
Zalancs and Wapes I3 RT2 95000 T1.928 23072
Fringe Benefits 9033 32,000 27217 4,783
Purchnsed Services 9,650 426212 239989 186,213
Mnterials and Supplies T43 47,800 2,238 -'il‘il_._‘i b2
Toal Operations 2nd Mantenance 113,298 &l 012 AT 255640
Pupdl lmansportation
Snlaries and Wajpes 2am 9.TH 6,939 2,782
Fringe Benchits 18§ 1,100 558 52
Purchased Services o L] { 1]
Matezials il Supphies i { { 1]
Capatal Ohatlay 0 o L 1]
Capatal Cnatlay - Replacement ] 1] 0 )
Ohbjest 3 [ 1] { 4]
Orbyject 2 ] 1] 0 0
Ohject | ] 0 0 0
her Expendiiures 1] L] 1] 1]
Tota) Pupil Transportation 2488 10421 7,497 3324

Continued
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Masen ity School District

Schedule ol Revenues, Expenditares and Changes in Fend Balanoe
Badget and Actual {Mon-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For thie Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Commumnity
Services
Furul
Criginal Final Variance from
Budpet Budge Aciual Final Budpes
Mon- Iestructional Services
Parchased Services 524 3,000 L5380 1,420
Mstenals aad Huppllcs 1|]43 '.';H:ﬁ':l F.I.'l 57 1,243
Capatal Chullay Q56 50H) 2 =50 2,120
Todal Won- Instruction:] Services 36231 15,700 10817 i TR
Eztracurmicular Activities
aterials and Supplics 0 1 0 3l
Capitn] Cullay 1,159 50062 3,491 1,571
Total Extracurricular Aclivilies 1,159 5,003 31491 1,602
Teal Expendinne 156,442 310,833 71,360 130,464
Exces of Revenuves Over
(Under) Expeaditures {117,736} 1,156,084 T, 792 (708,292
Other financing sources (wses);

Tranzfers In 43 064 — 1,150 ﬂ'f"!" _|_.|lﬁ_|_.!._|.ﬂl_|_ i
Tetal (hher Fmancing Sounces (Lzes) 43,964 1 (LSO 1,050,000 0
Met Change in Fund Balanee {73,902} 2 204,084 1,487,792 [T0E,292)
Fund Balane: ]-h.'glr.r'in;: of Year {includes

prof year encumbrances appropriated) 128,827 125827 128,827 [
Fund Balance End of Yeu 554,513 53334911 21626619 [5700%,292)
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Mazon City School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fumnd Balance
Budget and Actual {Non-GAAP Budgetary Basiz)

For the Fizcal Y ear Ended June 30, 2003

District Managed
Student Activity

Fund
Omiginal Final Vanance from
Budgel Budget Actual Final Budpet
Revenues:
Exrracurnicnlar Activities 8213771 3191.990 5194.198 F2a02
Other Revenues 3927 3,385 3,280 L
Total Revenues 217498 195381 197584 2003
Expendinares:
Current:
Extracurricular Activities
Purchased Services 4 403 3,752 3,752 i
Materials and Supplies 3,231 2 753 2,753 f
Capital Outlay 5419 2913 2913 L
Other Expenditires 217,552 205,352 185,714 19,638
Total Extracumicular Activities 228,005 214770 195,132 16,638
Total Expenditures 229005 214,770 195,132 15,638
Excess of Revernues Over E
{Under) Expendinires {11,507) (19,38 2452 21,841
Cher financing sources (usesh
Advances In 11,302 11,267 10,267 ]
Totmal (her Financmg Sources (Uses) 11,302 10,267 10,267 1l
Met Change in Fund Balence {205) (9,122) 12,719 21,841
Fund Balance Beginning of Year (includes
prior year encumbrances appropriated ) 11,591 11,991 11,991 0
Fund Balance End of ¥ car §11,736 2,869 524,710 $21.841




Masor City School District

Schedule of Bevenues, Expenditures and Changes m Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Besis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Auxtliary
Services
Fund
COnginal Final Variance from
Hudget Rudper Actual Final Budget
Revenues:
Traterest 51479 $1,523 51,823 0
Intergovermnmental 327,071 403,223 403,233 1]
Total Revenues J2E.550 405, (b 405,46 1]
Expenditures:
Currrent:
Hi 1= nsin ;']'ﬂnal SE' ces
Salaries and Wages T2079 DE.5TT RE.577 0
Fringe Benefits 22,549 30,838 30,838 ]
Purchizsed Services 35,642 AETA5 48,745 ]
Materials and Supplies 151,935 248817 4ERLT 0
Capiral Cutlay 74,398 107,218 107.218 1]
Total Mon- Instructional Services 390,603 534,195 534,195 0
Total Expenditures 390,603 534,195 534,195 [41]
et Change in Fund Balance (62,053} {129, 149 (129,149 n
Fund Balance Beginning of Year (includes
prier vear encumbrances appropristed) 126 149 124, 145 129,149 i}
Fund Balance End of ¥ ear 507,096 30 30 hit]




Meson City School District
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budgel and Actual {Non-GAAF Budgetary Basiz)
For the Fizcal ¥ ear Ended Tune 30, 2003

Career
Development
Furnd
Criginal Final Wariance from
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
Revenues:
Irtergovernmental BRI F9.356 9,356 S0
Total Revenes G0 0,356 0156 0
Expenditares:
Current:
[nstruction;
Vocaticnal
Salanes and Wagpes 2,988 3,000 3,000 0
Fringe Benefits 452 464 464 L
Pumt hased Services 1,421 1,055 1,427 $28
Materials and Supplies 4. 239 4,257 4,257 {
Total Vocational o MG 9,676 U144 324
Tonal Expenditures w1 LATH 0,148 528
Met Change in Fund Balance {110 {320) 208 528
Fumd Balance Beginning of Year (includes
prior year encumbrances appropriated) 320 320 320 0
Fund Balunce End of Year SI10 bl 5528 528
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Mazon City School [Hsmict
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures amd Changes in Fund Balance
Budpet and Acival (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basiz)

For the Fizcal Year Ended June 34, 2003

Management
Information
Swstem
Fund
Origimal Final WVariance from
Budget Budpga Actual Final Budpet
Revenues:
Interpovemimeital 325,000 528,782 S28,783 $1
Total Revenues 23,000 28,782 28,783 I
Expetditures:
Current:
Suppor Services:
Central
Salaries and Wages 35802 n474 0474 L]
Fringe Benefits 5,708 4931 4 8db T
Capital Cutlay 0 6,204 0 6,204
Total Cantral 41 A0 41,590 35320 63279
Towl Expenditures 41,600 41,599 35,320 6,279
Met Change in Fund Balance {10, 6060) (1Z81T) (6,537 6,280
Fund Balance Beginning of Year (inchides
prior year encumbrances appropriated) 25,330 25,330 25330 4]
Fund Belance End of Year 58,730 $12.513 518,795 50,280

T8



Mason City School Dhistrict

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budger and Actal {Non-GAAP Budgstary Basis)

For the Fizcal Year Ended June 30, 2003

CrneMet
MNetwaork
Connectivity
Funl
Omgmal Finat Vartance from
Budgel Budgpet Acual Final Budget

Rovenues;
Intergovernmental o $21.000 221,00 30
Total Revenues 0 21,000 21,000 0
Expendsmres;
Current:

Instruction:

Support Services: .

Central
Purchased Services i 21, 0K 21,000 [#]
Total Central {l 20,000 21,000 ]

Tetal Expendiiures L] 21,00 21,000 (i
Met Change in Fund Balance LU i L 0
Fund Balance Beginning of ¥ ear (includes

prior vear encumbrances appropriated) 0 0 { 1]
Fund Balance End of Year & Fi 1] S0




Mazon City Szhool Distriet

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAT Budgetary Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 10, 2003

Revenues:
Imterzovernmental

Total Reventes

Expenditures:
Current;
Suppori Services:
Instructional Smff
Salaries and Wages
Fringe Bensfits
Purchased Services

Total Instructional S1afT
Total Expenditures
Met Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance Begimning of Year (includes
priot year encumbrances appropriatsd)

Fund Balince End of Year

SchoolMet
Professional
Development

Fund
Criginal Final Viamance from
Budgel Budget Acheal Final Budgel

50 B600  f4500 50

0 460 4000 0

1,513 2950 2950 0

169 320 329 0

337 6,572 6,572 {
5,053 U851 9,851 0
5,053 GES1 0851 ([

(5.053) {5.251) {2,251} 0
5,251 3,251 3,251 i
Fl19g 18] 0 50

g0



Mason City Schoal Distrist

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Acteal (Non-GAAFP Budgetary Basis)

EE_r the Fiscal Year Ended June 34, 2003

Cthic Reads

Fund
Omgenal Fimal Wanance trom
Budpget Budget Aciual Final Budget
Revenues:
Intergovernmental 37,500 549,500 59500 0
Total Hevenues 7500 S.500 9,500 ]
Expenditures:
Curreni:
Instruchion:
Regular
Saleries and Wages U954 10,132 10,132 {
Fringe Benefits i,560) 1,583 1,5K3 i
Malenals and Supplies 4031 1,560 5400 104K
Total Regular 12,037 13,215 12.215 1,000
Suppott Services:
Instructional Staff
Galaries and Wages 1,823 3817 1,850 2,067
Fringe Benefits 245 758 249 509
Materials and Supplies 1441 LG50 1462 194
Total Instructonal Stadf 3,504 h,331 1,561 2.7
Tetal Expendilures 15,546 19,546 15,776 3,770
Met Change in Fund Balance (8,046) {10,046 (6,276} 1,770
Fund Balance Beginning of Year (includes
prior year cncumbrances approprizsted) 10,045 10,045 10,045 1]
Fund Balance End of Year £1. 060 (51} £3.769 $3,77

H1




Mason City School Dstrict

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Hudget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended Jung 30, 2003

Sale School
Help Line
Fund
Ongmal Final Yarance from
Budget Hudgpet Actual Final Budget
Revernues:
Intergovermmental 5090 35,572 $5,572 Ll
Total Revenues a5 5,572 5272 0
Expendinres:
Current:
Instruction;
Begular
Salaries and Wages i | o 0
Fringe Benefits ] ] ¥
Purchazed Services i ] 0 0
Matenals and Supplies il L 0 [
Total Regular s bl 1] i [t]
Suppon Services:
Instracticonal Stafl
Purchased Services L] l il [H]
Total Instructional Staff il {0 i 0
Orperations and Maintenance
Purchazed Services 3,223 B.296 7331 965
Total Operations and Maintenance 3.223 5,296 7.331 965
Toral Expendinres 3,223 £.296 Lin 635
Met Change in Fund Balance {2,233 (2,724} {1,759 05
Fund Balence Beginmng of ¥ ear {inchides
prior year encumbrances spprogrisied) e 3,TH 2.7 2,724 L]
Fund Balznce End of Year 5291 0 %63 F565
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Mason City School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budpet and Actual (Mon-0 A AP Budgetary Basis)

For il Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Schoaol
Conflizt
Management
Fund
Original Final Yariznce from
Budget Budpei Actual Final Budget
Revenues:
Intergovernmental 56, (H2 33,500 535,500 30
Total Revenues 6,082 33.500 33,5040 §]
Expenditures:
Curreni:
Instruction:
Eegular
Salaries and Wages 6,286 24 2K5 22804 1.421
Fringe Benefiis B0l 3,044 2,914 130
Purchazed Services 11 1,267 41kl i
Materials and Supplies 2,077 8,385 7,553 §32
Total Regular 9,274 36,081 31732 3,249
Support Services:
Instuctiong| Staff
Purchased Services __ 3w 1,433 [,433 ]
Teotal Instructional Staff _ 304 1.433 1,433 ]
Orperations and Maintenance
Purchased Services 0 ] 4] 1]
Total Cperations and Maintenance il o ] Q
Total Expenditures 9668 38,414 35,165 3,249
Nei Change in Fund Balance {31.588) (4,914 (1,665 3249
Fard Balance Beginning of Y ear (includes
pricT year encumbrances approprated ) 4.214 4,514 4,914 i}
Fund Balance End of Year . $1.328 S0 31,240 £3,249




Mazon City School Distice

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Batance
Budget and Actial (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Fiscal ¥ear Ended June 30, 2003

Eizenbower
Fund
Cnginal Final Wariance from
Budpet Budget Actual Final Budget
Fevenues:
Intergovernmental §173 30 10 s
Total Reventes 173 0 0 i
Expenditures:
Current;
Noen- Instructiona] Services
Muterials and Supplics 213 216 214 0
Total Mon- Instructional Services 213 216, 216 0
Total Expemtitures 213 216 e {0
Net Change in Fund Balanze {40) (215) (216) i
Fund Balance Beginning of Year {includes
prioT year cneumbrances appropriated) 216 216 i 4] 0
Fund Balance End of Year 3170 50 §i0 50
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Mazon City School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Mon-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

Far the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Title VI-B
Fund
Ciriginal Final YVarance from
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
Revenues:
Intergovemmental T304 403 353,134 £353.139 0
Tatal Revenues 396,403 353,139 353.139 1]
Expendiiures:
Current:
Enstructzon:
e
Halaries and Wages 330,535 304 6013 F3.518 1,085
Fringe Benefits 04,547 7T 138 E4.51H 2,620
Purchased Services 18,794 16,800 16, BN 0
Total Special 437 870 408, 54] 404 536 3,705
Support Services:
Salanes and Wages 54 1,800 48 1,752
Fringe Benefits 8 278 T g |
Purchased Services [ 2480 12,096 11,156 Q40
Materials and Supplies i 6,512 {1 G612
Total Instructicnal Stafl 12,542 20,786 11,211 9.575
Mon- Instctional Services
Purchazed Services 393497 35218 35218 {
Total Non- Instructhonal Services 35,397 35,218 35,218 il
Taotal Expenditures 04,815 464,545 451,265 13,280
Excess of Revenues Ohver ]
{(Undery Expendimres (108,412} (111,408} (98,126) 13,280
Chher financing sources (uses):

Advances In 45,733 400,742 411,742 1]
Total hher Financing Sources (Lses) 45733 40,742 40,742 3 i]
Met Change in Fund Balance {62,679 (OG04 {37384 13,280
Fund Balznce Bepinning of Year {includes

prior vear encumbrances apprepriated) 0,004 TO664 705064 0
Fund Bulunce End of ¥ear 87,085 30 513,250 S13.280
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Mason City School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
DBudget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budpetary Rasis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Yeocatonal
Education
Fund
Drniginal Fmal Yarance from
Budget Budget Adtual Final Budget
Revenues:
Intergovernmental ) 14,860 514,609 514,609 i
Total Revenues 14 860 14,606 14,609 8]
Expenditures;
Current:
Instruction:
Nogational
Silaries and Wages 1,742 1,750 1,750 (¥
Fringe Benehis 266 267 267 1]
Purchased Services 2,908 3,012 3012 1]
Materials and Supplies 5373 5,457 5,308 50
(rher Expenditures 4,503 4,526 4 526 ]
Totel Vocational 14,884 15,012 14,953 5
Total Expendinres 14,884 15,012 14,953 59
Excess of Revenues Over p—
(Underp Expendinares (24) (4030 [344) 50
Other financing sources (uses):

Advances (Cut) (4,723) (4,751) {4.751) {
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (4,729) (4,751} (4,751} i
Met Change in Fund Balance 4,733) {5,154} (5,005) 54
Fund Balance Beginning of Year {includes

prior year encumhrances appropriated) 5154 5,154 3,154 ¥}
Fund Batance End of Year ] 30 59 559

B



Mazson City School Dhstrict

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAT Budgetary Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Refugee lmpact

Fund
Original Final Vanamwce from
Budga Budget Aciual Final Budget
Revenues:
Intergovernmental 50 53,000 RER] 50
Total Kevenues 0 3,000 3,000 i
Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction:
Begular
Materials and Supplics i 35000 (4] 3.000
Total Regular { 3000 4] 3,060
Total Expenditires 0 20080 0 3,040
MNet Change in Fund Balance 0 i 3,000 3,000
Fund Balance Beginning of Year (includes
prior year encumbrances appropristed) 0 ] {1 o
Fund Balance End of Year 0 50 E3.000 F3,000

=)




hason City School Districl

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Mon-GAAF Budgetary Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2003

Title |

Fund _
Original Final Vanance from
Budget Budgzet  Actual Final Budget
Revenues:
Intergovernmental 571,606 §56,199 £36,194 %0
Total Revenuss 71,606 56,194 56,194 {l
Expenditares:
Current:
Instruction:
Spesial
Salaries and Wapes 35,4534 44,940 44,940 0
Fringe Benefits 5,590 4478 4475 0
Purchased Services 30 4149 65 354
Materials and Supplies 2,197 1,781 1,781 I
Total Special 03.231 51,615 51,261 154
Non- Instructional Services
Salanies and Wages 10,246 8,306 4,300 0
Purchased Services 204 324 l6b:. L&l
Total Mon- Instructional Services 10,450 8634 BATE 163
Total Expenditures 73,681 0l 249 59732 SL7F
Met Change in Fund Balance (2,075) {4,055} (3,538) 517
Fund Balance Beginning of Year (includes
prior yeiar encumbrances appropriacd) i 4,055 40055 4,055 [
Fund Balance End of Year 51,080 &0 $517 3517

28




Mason City School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expendinires and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget ond Actual (Non-GAAP Budpetary Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Tutle VI
Fund
Ohrigimnal Final Wariance from
Budget Budget Actus| Final Budget
Revenues:
Intergavermnmental 241 706 $36, 744 516,744 S0
Total Revenues 41,716 36,744 36, 744 {0
Expenditures:
Clurrent:
Instruction:
Begular
Salanes and Wages 41,213 36,768 3, 708 [
Total Regular 41,213 36,768 36,768 [y
Support Services:
Instructional Staff
Materials and Supplies 338 480 480 1]
Total Instructional Staff = 538 480 480 i
Mon- Instructional Services
Purchased Services 516 Al 468 {
Total Nen- Instructional Services 316 460 460 ik
Total Expenditures 42,267 37,708 17,708 i}
Excess of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures (551) (964 (96d) 0
Onher financing sources {uses): -

Advances In 548 444 484 Q
Total Cther Financing Sources (Uses) 540 444 484 S
Met Chuange in Fund Balance 12} {430 (480 0
Fund Balance Beginming of Year (includes

prior year encumbrances appropriated) 450 4510 480 1]
Fund Balance End of Year 5478 &0 50 50

(=3




Mazen City School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budger and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basiz)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 341, 2003

Drug-Free
Schools
Fund .
Orvginal Final Variance from
Budpet Budget Actual Fina! Budge
Revenues:
Intergnvermmensal 15,670 511,058 511058 L0
Total Revenues 15,670 11,055 11,058 0
Expenditures:
Current;
Instruction:
Support Services:
Tupil
Salares and Wages 15377 13,469 13,469 [¥]
Frings Benelits BE 77 T 0
Purchased Services 4,111 4 186 3,601 55
Muatenals amd Supplies f,159 5421 5421 [¥]
Total Pupil 25,765 23,153 x2.568 K5
Mon- Instructional Services
Purchesed Services 114 101 104 0
Materials and Supplies 1,544 1,491 1617 274
Total Men- Instructional Services 1,960 1,991 1.717 274
Total Expenditures 21,725 25,144 24 285 B0
Excess of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures (12,044) (14,0863 (13,227 B5G
Cher finencing sources (uses):

Advances In 3,925 2,768 2,768 ]
Total Cther Financing Sources (Lses) 3,025 2 ThR 2. 768 1]
Met Change in Fund Balance (8.121) (11.318) (10,45%) §5%
Fund Balance Beginning of Year (includes

prioT year encumbrances appropriaied) 11.318 11318 11318 1]
Funid Balance End of Year £3.197 80 £859 SRS
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Muson City School [hsmst

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Public
Schoaol
Preschool
Fund
Original Final Variance from
Budpet Budget Actual Final Budget
Reveniies:
Intergovermmental 21 5011 f15,002 figanz 0
Total Revenues 21,501 18,002 18,002 4]
Expenditures:
Current:
nstruction:
Suppart Services:
Instructicnal Staff
Salaries and Wages 23,385 15,579 19,579 0
Total Instruclional Stafl 2385 19 57% 19579 0
Total Expendimires 23,385 19,579 19.579 0
Excess of Bevenues Cver
(Under) Expenditures {1 ER4y (1.57N {1.577) {l
Other financing sources {uses):

Advances In 1,884 1,577 PR b {
Total (ther Financing Sources (Lses) 1.584 1,577 1,577 0
Met Chanpe in Fund Balance L}] { LH 4]
Fund Balance Beginning of Year (includes

prior year encumbrances appropriated ) )] ] 1] 4]
Fund Balance End of Year 50 il 30 50

21




Mizeon City School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditores and Changes m Fund Balimee
Budget and Actoal (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

Far IJl_I.; Fiscal Year Ended June 20, 2003

E-Rate
Fund
Crigimnl Final Variance from
Budpet Budpet Actal Final Budzer
Revenues:
[mteTEevemmental S0 $55.263 555,263 0
Totul Revenues 0 55763 55,263 4]
EI]J'_'TII“:I.II (=
Current:
Support Services:
Upensbions and Maintenance
Parchased Services 0 1,00 L 1,000
Total Cperations awd Maintenance = 1] (e ] 1,[Hm)
Central
Purchased Services 48 870 47 870 44311 3,550
Total Contral ALE70 A7 570 44311 3,559
Total Expenditures 48870 48,870 44311 4,559
Net Change in Fund Balance [4E, K700 6,393 10,952 4 559
Fumd Balimce Beginnimg of ¥ear (includes
prior year encunbrances appropriated) 48 K70 45 870 __ARR0 1]
Funil Balance End of Year S0 155263 559,832 £4.550
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Masom City School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Fiscal Y ear Ended June 30, 203

[mprosving
l'eacher
Chaality
Fumd L |
Chriginal Final Warianee from
Budget Britd get Actual Final Budpe
Revenues:
Interpevernmental 577,405 $41,451 541,451 30
Total Fevenue: 77405 41,451 41,451 1]
Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction:
Repular
Salaries and Wapes 0,972 27.206 27,20 ‘5
Total Regular 50,972 27 2596 27,204 0
Support Bervices:
nstmuctional Stafl
Salaries and Wapes 35,362 19,044 19,044 1
Fringe Benefita 5,462 2,925 2835 0
Purchased Services 100,244 3,480 5,482‘ {
Total Instructnonal Staff 51,268 27,455 27,455 0
Tetal Expendiwres 102 240 .751 54,751 {
Excess of Revenues Over T
{Under) Expenditures (24,833 {123,300 (13,5000 a
Other financing sources (uses):

Advances In 24 5% 13,300 13,300 ]
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 24,836 13,300 13,300 0
Met Change in Fund Balance 1 0 0 0
Fund Balance Beginning of Year (includes

prior year encumbrances appropriated) 1] - ] 0
Fund Balance End of ¥ car £l 0 30 Fi
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Mason City School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Continuons
Improvement
Fund
Ciriginal Final WVariance from
Budget Budpe: Actual Final Budgei
Revenues:
Interpovernmental = 51,041 12,970 F12.970 3
Total Revenues 1,91 12,970 12,970 0
Expendimmes:
Cutrent:
Insiruction:
Bepular
Salaries and Wages 3,24] 5,930 7,930 1]
Capital Outlay 9,605 17,573 17,573 L1}
Total Regular 12,840 23,503 23,503 0
Supporm Services:
Instructional S1aff
Salaries and Wages i 353 0 353
Total Instructional Seaff 0 153 0 351
Total Expenditures 12,846 23,850 23,503 353
Ket Change in Fund Balance (T ERS) {10 RB6) {10,533) 353
Fund Balance Beginning of Year {includes
prior year encumbrances appropriated) L R EG 10,886 I0.E8G6 1]
Furd Balance End of Year i S 5153 £353
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Mazon City Schoel District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures end Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Acmual (Non-GAAT Budgetary Basis)

For the Fisca! Year Ended June 30, 2003

Dbt
Service
Fuid
Cripinal Firal Varance from
Budget Budper Actal Fimal H-udgm
Revenues:
Taxes $8.650,111 $5.835,361 5,835,747 386
[merest 116,156 | 20,000 115,523 (1,475)
Intergovernmental 968,662 GEB.617 088,422 (195)
Total Kevenues 9,743 929 9243 978 0543, 694 [1.284}
Expenditures
Current:

Suppiat Services:

Administration 22,140 22,000 21,953 47
Fizzal 124 060 135,000 127,970 7.030
Dlebt Service:

Principal Retirement 11,0540, (1K) 17,0030, 000 11,030,000 i

Interest and Fiscal Charges 61284871 6.123.071 5983 5318 139,133
Total Expenditures 17310071 17,310,071 17,163,861 146,210
Excess of Revenues Owver (Under) Expenditires (7,566,142) (7.3 66,093} {7.221,167) 144,526
Other finzncing sources (uses):

Proceeds of Bonds and Maoles 7791071 7,950,000 T.950,000 0
Total Cither Fimancing Sources (Llses) T.791,071 7950, 000 7950000 0
Mgt Change in Fund Balance 224929 583907 T8 633 144,926
Fund Balance Beginning of Year {(includes

prior year encumbrances appropriated) 3,409,546 3,405 546 3,400 546 0
Fund Balance End of Year $3.634,475 $3,993 453 54,138,379 §144,926
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Mazon City Schonol District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Mon-GAAF Budperary Basiz)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Capital
Projects
Fund
Original Final Variznce from
Hudget Budpet Actual Final Budpet
Revenues:
Taxes £215 654 $415.214 F415,.232 g18
Interest 5870 9300 10,343 843
Intergoyvermmental 26,362 46,460 46,430 (1)
Cither Revenues 45,113 1,029,000 1,136,718 107,715
Total Revenues ] 513 0601 1,500,174 1,608,743 108 569
Expendiiures:
Current:
Support Services:
Admimstration
Ohiver Expenditures 12370 1,040 1,032 i
Total Administration 12,370 1,040 1,032 b
Fiscal
Crther Expenditures T2 048 8,000 6,014 1,086
Tetal Fiscal T288 B0 A.014 1,986
Orperations and Maintepance
Oriher Expenditures 0 442 460 1 442,460
l'otal Operations and Maintenance 1] 442 460 { 442460
Extrecumcular Acnvities
Capital Crutlay T4 955 44,7209 4 651 T
Oher Expenditures 67,282 5613 5613 ]
Tetal Extracurmicular Activitics £42.237 703,342 70,264 T8
Capital Ourlay 0 415,195 ] 415195
Total Expenditures 926,685 937037 77310 339127
Met Change in Fund Balance (13,644) 563,137 1,531,433 068,290
Fund Balance Bepinning of Year (includes
prior year encembrances appropriated ) 541,021 541,021 541,021 [
Fund Balance End of Year §527.327 51,104,158 82,072,454 5968, 256

=1




Mason City School Distrct

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Acmal (Non-GAAT Budgetary Basis)

For the Fiscal ¥ ear Ended June 20, 2003

Building
Fund
Original Final Variance from
Budget Budger Acieal Final Buduet
Revenues:
Interest S 100,000 F110,000 108,551 [5449)
Towml Revenues 100,000 110,000 104,551 {44%)
Expenditures:
Current:
Support Scervices:
Operations and Meintenance
Salaries and Wages 5B 57030 57030 [y
Frnge Benefits 3370 21,718 21,718 ]
Capital Cutlay 0,565 42,228 42,228 ]
Teta]l Operastions and Mamtenance 18,807 120,976 121],'??@_‘ ]
Cemtral
Salarics and Wages { 1412 [¥] 1,412
Fringe Benefits a 104 4] 104
Purchased Services { TA00 4] 7800
Capital Outlay 197,885 | 86,445 1,272,911 413,934
Total Central 1597 86 | 606161 1.272.91] 423,250
Capital Cutlay 3027944 20,255.952 19,477,436 178,516
Total Expendinres 3,284 637 22,073 089 20,871,323 1,201 766
Met Changge in Fund Balance (3,144 637 (21,963,089) (20,761,775 1,201,317
Fund Balance Beginning of ¥ear {includes
prior year encumbranees appropriated) 22057148 22 057,148 22057, 144 0
Fend Balance End of Year 518.912,511 £04,059 £1,205 376 5121317




Mason City School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Mon-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

SchoolMet
Plus
N Fund
Criginal Final Vanance from
Bud et Budgpet Actual Final Budget
Revenues:
Intergovernmental Su8.461 BER 461 LRE.461 0
Total Revenues REA6] B8 a6l aR.401 4]
Expenditures:
Currene:
Instrection:
Regular
Capital Chutlay E8, 461 #4010 BE41R 23
Total Regular EE 4nl HE, 461 BEA38 23
Towal Expenditures BEA401 BB, 401 BEA3E 23
Net Change in Fund Balance i 0 23 23
Fund Balance Beginning of ¥ear (includes
prior vear encumbrances appropriated ) 0 0 i [
Fund Balanse End of Year o S0 0 523 $23

a8




Statistical
Section




This Page Intentionally Left Blank

99




This Page is Intentionally Left Blank.



Mazon City Schoal THatrict
Creveral Fund

Expenditure: by Function
Last Ten Fiscal ¥ears

Current:
Instruction:
Regular
Specmal
Viocarional
Oriher Instruction
Supgort Services:
Pupils
Instructional Staff
Board of Education
Administration
Fiscal
Business
Operation and Mainterance
of Plunt Services
Pupil Transportation
Central
Operation of Non-Irstructicnoal
SETVICES
Extracurricular Activitics
Capital Outlay
Diebt Service

Total

Source: School District Financial Records

2002

2001

20000

F24,250,500

£21,375,506

518,293,160

15,636,456

4,436,480 3,201,535 2763760 2,325 B17
6l { 0 0
186,3%0 120,064 14 455 26,034
3,447 513 2824871 2310808 1,935,035
4.478,041 3.755 480 3.043.773 2,540,641
72,318 58,415 46,824 40,083
4,055,742 3,632,567 2674, 129 2,425 189
1,215,312 1,041,477 929219 TR, 359
266,655 122,103 177,658 154,872
7450706 4,872 630 4 372 285 3.876.115
4,185,399 3.660, 658 2,765,998 2,338,707
2 181,195 1,003 830 DEG, 006 864,088
62 829 48,006 37,969 36,440
1,038,035 B66, 633 337,403 450,008
0 109 688 153,080 331,768

0 144 254 146,449 75,273
$37,379.81 47,628,746 539 277,126 334,075,901
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TABLE 1

10 1998 10497 LT 1445 1904
£13,210,555 $11.566.931 50,447 228 38,363,374 37,506,310 16 696 654
1,752,373 1.786,033 1,402,853 1,119,742 954,666 e
976 53,008 146,108 128,513 130,081 120,575
02 054 70258 6%, 520 28,432 48 322 41,818
1,691,501 1,404,157 1,160,350 735,965 566,827 525,134
1,630 087 744102 603,008 36, 937 328300 275,180
42 pog 17,001 28,380 34,38% 30.748 36,352
2,280 868 1,807,063 1,375,131 1,329 407 1,150,504 1,114,513
670,861 593,025 4958 780 432,09 333,660 351,626
97,767 ET, 630 75,078 11,502 { 0
3,490 804 2,552,327 2004, 935 1,936,272 1.746.923 1,350,667
| Gt BRO LG54, 702 1,435,736 1,313,261 1,188,795 1065216
GRGELT 380, 004 245,385 108,589 Q8.470 9,063
37,517 31,7258 24,258 o 67,205 43,017
373,010 342 360 306,250 319,021 300,175 285,253
4,284 5,000 36,070 i+ 6,514 3,080
4,825 B,351 527,122 0 0 0
2R 358 780 573,233 499 519,386,600 516,257,422 S14 468, 500 512508 203
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Mlason City Schnal Dhismrct
General Fund

Revenues by Sautce

Last Ten Fiscal Yeors

Taxes
Intergovernmentz|
Tnreres

Tuition and Fees
Orther Revenues

Total

Source; School District Financial Records

20013 2oz 2001 2000
$36,422,709 28,088,515 521454 044 321 418 332
23,444 470 11,715 088 16,808, 850 13,956,754
313,037 405 659 BT8R, 597 607,041
513,190 391,920 372,793 313160
344,412 633,696 263,647 T1.582
$01.038 427 331,234 B4k 539,777 931 §36. 387,770
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TABLE Z

1999 1968 1997 1905 1505 1904
$18,100,212 515,615,561 FL2.200,649 30,421,138 52,904,411 18,160,643
11,514,719 0,503 628 7.553,888 5,836,854 5,002,516 4,108 440
431,026 289,501 152,358 148,533 156,463 120,001
41,137 34,236 44,204 20 e 47,355 37,200
58,322 133,820 30 598 74,630 126,852 105,262
£30,175,416 $25,665,746 $19,900 587 $13,511,128 $14.237,597 512,532 455
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Masan City School District
Computation of Lepal Debt Margin
Asof Tune 30, 2003

TABLE?

Axgesged Valuation 51,102, 119350

Voted Debt:

Drebt Limit - 9% of Assessed Value (1) FOC 100,742
Debt Limit - Special Meeds District (2) 5150,760,755
Amount of Debr Applicable to Debe Limit:
Geoeral Obligation Bond 53,200,000
General Ohligation Bond 17,815,000
General Obligation Boud 21,420,000
General Obligation Bond G0 575,000
Bond Anticipation Mote 7850000
Sub-toal 5119 960,000
Less: Amount Available in Debt Service Fund (3,343,925}
Total Dbt Subject to Limit 5114 416,075
Yoted Debr Margin (Special Meeds District) §36,344 630

Unvoted Debt:

[rebt Limit - . 10% of Assessed Value (1) 51,102,119

Source: Warren County Auditor and School Disteict Financial Records

(1} Ohie Bend Law sets a limit of 9% for voted debt and 1010 of 1% for unvoted debt. All District debt subject
i the limitation s vowed.

(2} Upder Section 133.06(E) of the Ohio Revised Cade, i a board of education determines that its stedents
are 0ot being adequately serviced by existing facilities, and that sufficient funds o provide such facilites
cannot be obtained when needed by the msuance of bonds within the nine percent limitation, 0 may qualify
a5 a "special needs disznet”, and thereby be permined 1o incur net indebtedness in excess of the ning mill
limitation. The district applied for and received approval of the Ohio Department of Tazation and the
Ohio Depantment of Education o become & special needs district.
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Mason City School Dhstnct
Computatzon of Direct and Cverlapping General Oblipation Fonded T
A of June 30, 2003

TABLE R
General Pereentage Ammiount

Obligation Diebi Applicable o Applicable

Jurisdiction Cnarstznding Schoal Bastrict (1) Scheal Disirict
Mason CSD S01%, 960,000 1K) () % 119 a0 000
Butler County 83,041,600 005 % 41,971
Warren Cousnty 4,010,870 1A% 1,092, 160
Lehanon City 5.471,120 000 % il
Ciry of Mason 11,125 (M) BE.41% 9 535 613
Dreerficld Township T, 4600 533 48, 675 3,631,187
West Chester Toamnship 28,135,000 0.25% 0,338
Great Oaks Joint Vocational Schoo 6, 240 00 f.81% 424 044
Torml $269,344,423 $135,056,213

Source: Ohio Municipal Advisory Council

109



Mascn City Schoal District

Eatio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures for

General Obligaticn Bonded Debr to Total General Fund Expenditures
Last Ten Calemlar Years

TABLE @

Ratio of Debi

Tioal Total Service
Debt Cieneral Fund Creneral Fund
Year (1) Principal Interest Service Expenditures Expenditures
2003 52,330,000 55 B0% 935 58,139 938 557,379,811 14.19%
2002 3,070,000 5,705 808 B.R63 RB0R 47 B2k 46 [8.53%
2001 1,220,000 2496207 3716207 N2TT 126 O.46%
2000 1,105,000 2,554 382 3,650,382 34,075,901 10,74 %
1990 1,335,000 2,618 210 3,953,210 28 358 230 13.04%
1958 1,479,200 1,992 231 347140 23,233 499 14.94%
1997 Q26,00 1.623 493 2,540 403 19,326,196 13.19%
19826 771,99 1,783,629 2,555,622 16,257 422 15.72%
1985 40,518 728284 1,668 802 14 468 500 11.53%
1994 693,756 TEL 463 1.476.219 12,598,203 15.72%

Sowrce: Schoal District Financial Records,
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Mason City School Disiraet
Demoymaphic Statistics
Last Ten Calendar Years

TABLE [f

Warren Linemployment Uncmployment Linemsplovinent

Councy Mason Ciry School Haw Fate Rate
Tear Population {13 {4} Population (1) {4) (5) Enrollment {2) Warren County (3) Suare of Ohvio (1) U.5A. (%)
2003 158 333 22016 8,003 4, % b6 6.50%
2002 L5R 383 12016 7363 4,601 5.9%01F 600
20 L58 383 21,016 6,711 3.30% A 47 4. 0%
20k T15 50 21150 6,057 3.20% 4.20% 2. 20%
1954 [13 509 19.200 5,364 3.200% 4.50% 4.50%
1908 113 509 17,500 4 783 3A0% 4.50% 4.70%
1967 113,909 15,8635 4,371 2.590% 4.530% 5.20%
151946 L1390 14,366 1,845 3A0% 4,60% 4%
1995 113 3 13,240 3.4H) 4.00% 4.50% SR
1594 113,909 12.495 1.0M S.00% 5.40% 6.0

Soarce:
{1 V190 Cenms
(2) School Dhistrict Reconds

(3} Ohio Bureaw Employment Seovices - Data for 2002 based upon June.
(4) 2000 Census

{5} Estimare
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Mason City School Distroict

Property Walue, Financial Institution Deposits
And Building Pesmits

Last Ten Calendar Years

TARLE 11

Property Value of

Value County Bank Building

Year (Keal Estate Only) Dreposits (1) (3) Permits Issued (2)

2002 SO0 126,080 1,500,000, 00 583,056,255
0 44 804 B30 | 388,000 000 172,221 950
20010 TRE_ 354 040 1,248 00, (00 05,176,832
1999 384, 567,320 1,200 862 000 118,161 589
1998 SU7 BT, 164 1,130, 159 000 111,291 583
1597 447,470,900 1,080, 081 (00 TER12.560
15596 345,531 240 1,044,777, KD 74,115,054
1995 308,020 850 G68.832 000 02,415,454
19534 276,071,590 HES, 766,000 44414 494
1903 224 411,120 i} 57.635.020

Source:

(17 Federal Reserve Bank of Cleveland & Federal Deposit Insurance Corp. (www2 FDIC GOV
(2] City of Mason Depaniment of Ecopomic Development and Planming

(3] Information Unavailable
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Mason City School District
Frincipal Taxpayers
Real Estate Tax

TABLE 12

Percent of Total

Asmerned Real Estats
Mame of Taxpayer Type of Businesy Wale (1) Assessed Yalue

Duike Realty Led. Parmership Cuommercial Property Leasing 513,079,563 1.42%
Direes Company Fesidential Builder and Developer G3.591,510 72%
Mauson Christian Village Fetirement Community 6,123,800 0.67%
Cimtas Sales Corporation Professional Uniforms 5,802, 540 0.63 %
Morropolitan Life Insurance Insurance Company 5,747,700 0.62%
Northeas Cincinnan Hotels Hotg] Chain 5,534,350 0.60%
Twin Fountains of Mason Apartment Complex 4,549,300 0405
Hills Real Estate Group Real Estare 4. 410 000 0.48%
Ketweod Lincoln-Mercury Avtomobele Dealership 4,056,760 044 %
A-NMold Corp. Mamufacnere Alurmamim Wheels 3,779,900 LA1R

$59 084 423 648 R

Source: Warren County Auditor

{17 Assessed values are for the 2003 collection vear.
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Mirson Lty School Dhstriot
Principal Taxpayers
Tunmble Personal Property Tax

Name of Taxpayer

Type of Business

Mitsubishi Electric

I'BE Automortive

Procrer & Gamble

Cintas Corporation No. 2
Thomson Learmne Inc.
Kenwood Lincoln-Mercury
Legpert & Plan Inc.
Blackhawk Automotive Plastocs
Facs Group Ine

Kings-Tovota Inc.

source: Warmen Counry Auditor

Manufactures Awtomahile Pans
Aluminim Whesl Supplier
Health Care Research
Professional Uniforms

Learinng Solutinns

Auromobile Dealership
Innerspring Mattress Components
Anromorive Plasrics

Retail Credit Company

Automahile Dealership

(1) Assessed values are for the 2003 collection year.
(2) Type of business information was not availahle from the Counry Auditor,

[ABLE [3
Percent of
Total Tangible
Assessed Personal Properiy

Value {1} Asseseed Value
522.359.780 14.05%
14,713,620 0%
14556580 914 %
8,873,400 5375
4,805 930 3.08%
4,211,080 2.05%
4064130 2.55%
3,044,320 Z248%
3,105,120 1.95%
2,643,770 1.66%
583.360,730 52.37%




Masan City School Disinet
Principal Taxpayers
Public Lhility Personal Property Tax

TABLE 14

Pereentage of
Total Tublic Ualicy

Assessed Personal Property
Name of Taxpayer Value (1) Assessed Value

Cincinnan CGas and Elecrric 13,644,850 SOE2%
United Telephonse 6,377,310 27.064%
Crncimman Bell Telephone 663,700 ]
Awest Comm. Corp. 439,190 1.03%
New Par 304,040 1.33%
Cincimmati Bell Wireless 206,030 1.30%
Bprintcom, Inc, 284 360 1.25%
Time Warner 193 520 0,85%
Cincinmari SM5A Lird, P, 164 720 0.72%
WVaoicestream Columbues, Inc. 100,770 0444

23469 390 DE.51%

Source; Warren County Auditor

(1} Assessed values are for the 2003 collection vear.
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Mason City School District
Cost to Ederate a 2003 Graduate
Mason Ciry School District Versus Staze of Ohio

TABLE 13
— Cost Per Pupil -——-———

School Year Grade Mason CSD (1) State Average (1) Comparison
1990-01 K 53,034 54,300 {3456)
1501-52 1 4266 44236 (1700
190293 Z 4,238 & 522 (5Rd)
1203-04 3 4.44] 4,882 (411)
190405 4 4 4340 5157 (67T
1805-06 3 4,475 5,299 [524)
L 55G-07 i 4 458 5,355 1,007

1997-98 (2) i 3,285 3460 (184)

1095-09 (1) 2 62T fr, B (529

199900 (2) 9 6,35 7.108 (754)

2000-01(2) 0] 6,857 7.61% (TE2)

20000202 11 7487 8,054 (56°7)

2002-03(2) e 7,581 8,015 (434)

370,107 377,586 (57.,479)

Source: School District Financial Records

{1} The Department of Education las no mechanism in place o provide this data on 3 GAAP
basis. As g result, gl figures are prescnied on a cash basis wo provide a mors
meaning ful comparisomn.

(2} The Departent of Edvcation adopted a new calculation for per pupil spending,

Beginninp in 1997-98 per pupil spending is based upon the departments expenditures
flow model.
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Miasom City School District
Miscelloneous Stanstical Data

TABLE 16

Year of Criginal Charter:
Corrent Charter:

Fnrm of Gavernment;
Area of Disiricr:

June 10, 1968
Scpiembser 9, 1904
Public School District
25 Sguare Miles

Nummber Miles Traveled by Transportation

Flest for the 2002-2003 School Year: 1,122 407
Mumber Meals Served by Food Service
Depariment for the 2002-2003 School Year; BAT 460
Grade
Schoo! Buildings Levels Enroliment
Mason Heights Elementary 1-2 1.401
Western Row Elementary 34 1,302
Mason Middle School 5-6 1,266
Mason Intermediate T-8 1.256
William Mascn High Schoul o2 1,957
Mason Early Childbwood Center P5-K 791
8,003
Number Percentage
of Certified of
Degroe Staft Total
Bachelor's Degres L37 2504 %
Bachelor + 150 183 31 46%
Master's Diegree 224 40.95%
Doctorate 3 0.55%
Total 57 10000 %
Mumber Percentage
of Certified of
Years of Experience Sraff Toal
0-5 290 53.01%
G- 10 111 20.20%
11-15 52 251%
16 - 20 34 6.22%
21-25 31 5.07%
26 - 30 22 4.02%
31-35 T 1.28%
36 - 40 0 0.00%
547 1040, 080 55

Source: School District Records
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Mlason Cily School Distncl
Largest Employers

Employer

Mamre of Activity
or Business

TARBLE 17

MNumber
of Employees

Procter & Gamble

Cintas

Luzottics Retml

Mason Clity School Dismict

Blackhawk Auvioowotive

UBE Aulomotive North America

Porion Pac

Mitsehishr Blectme Automptive

CMC Electronics Cincinnati

Leggett and Plat

Source: Ciry of Mason

Health Care Rescarch Center
Mamsfacture Uniforms

Oiptieal Rewail Chain

Education

Mamufacture Flastic Moldings
Mamufacrure Ahimimom Wheals

Mamufacture (Condimenms

Mamefacture Starters and Allermalors

Engineering, Development and Production

Tnnerspring Matress Components

113

2.400

1,500

I, 162

S0
458
450
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Mason City School Dhstrict

Levy Histony
TABLE 1%
Drane of
Elecnion Type of Issue Millage Fur Arpains 2 For
TIRAST]  Geperal Operating 10 year 4,00 Gl 754 5485 %
161972 General Operating (Renswal Continuing) 16, 10 L.667 G 64 79%
22001973 Special Operaring G, 80 270 513 34 48%
114501973 Special - General Operaring 4.00 H30 D38 47.21%
1241271973 Special - General Operating {Cont. ) 4.00 821 fred 55.20%
11191981 General Operafing (Renswal) 4,00 1.970 6u2 Ta.00%
1'% 198 Bond Tssue (SAH) * 1.60 1681 031 04 36%
3151982 General Operating (New Cont,) 6.50 o2 505 a11%
GIGI1983 Bond Issue (SAH) * 1.10 205 v TOM%
WOI9E5  Bond Issue (SAH) * 1.30 aan 86 T2.33%
26080 Bond [ssue .50 631 1.037 18.57%
11/6/198%  Dond [ssue 4.70 1.642 1518 £1.96%
3401992 General Operating (New Cont) B.00 1.567 1,407 52.69%
S5/8/1995  Special Levy (Land Purchase) 0.0 oo B68 53.38%
1161995 Bond Tssue 378 1,978 2,015 48.33%
25196 Hond Issue 3.27 1,4H 1,524 419.10%
G006 Bond Issue 3.27 1,500 1,880 S0.26%
G999 Bond lssue ER 1644 1,068 a0.6d %
22 General Crperating (New Cont. ) O B 2,832 2,218 56008 %
2052001 Bond Issue 5.01 1,895 502 T0.26%
AER2004  Bond Lssus 6.78 3,690 3248 53.19%
302005 Drperating Levy** 0495 3,196 2,301 58.14%

Source: School District Records

* 5AH - Say at Heme Issues
** Incremental Levy phased in over three vears heginning in 20602 6,85, B 45 9.05




Mason City School Distnct
Student Population by Sex and by Race
For the 20:02-2003 School Year

TABLE 19

Grads Male Female Total
Ps 62 3l 93
K a7l 327 098
1 145 344 aEY
) 171 341 712
3 aza 350 685
4 a19 2098 al7
5 315 321 636
G 30 291 630
7 260 27 687
& 285 184 560
9 286 270 556
10 257 238 495
1l 257 246G 03
12 2725 200 425
Ungraded 7 1 B
4. 128 3875 A e

Race Total Percent
American Indian/Alaskan 17 0.22%
Astan 417 521%
Black 223 2E1%
Cancasian 7,133 B0 13%
Hizpanic 113 1.41%
Multi-Ractal o8 1.22%
B 003 104 00 %

Source: School Dismice Financial Records,
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Bason City School Dhstnet
Directory of School Facilibies
As of June 30, 20403

TABLEZ22
Administrator / Phaome
Facility Address Comtact Cirades Numbers

Early Childhood Center 211 North Ezst Street Mike Zimmermann PEK A0E-374]
Mason Heights School 200 Northerest Dirive Tom Maorris 1-2 J0R-ZEBE
Western Row School 755 Western Row Road Will Becker < 398-3821
Mason Imermediate 713 &, Mason-Montgomery Rd. Catherine Humter 4.6 4502850
Ma=on Middle School 70 8. Mason-Montgomery Rd Tomya McCall T-8 398-0035
Mason High Schonl G104 5, Mason-Montgomery Rd. Bob Carter 0.12 JUE-5025
Professiond] Development Center 4836 Tylersville Road Sandy Schneider 3367367
Bus Garage 5025 Enterprise Diive Ron McClure 3086682
Maintenance Garage 5120 Enterprise Drive George Hizrhizll 3082784
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This Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
wis prepared by:

The Treasurer's Office
Mason City School District
Richard Gardner, Treasurer

The Masen City School District Treasvrer's Office:

Chris Hofer Assistant Treasurer
Terri Ross Payroll Supervisor
Eosita Dobbins Accounting Clerk
Aamy Elliout Accounting Clerk
Ericka Hoeod Accounting Clerk
Stefame Howland Accounting Clerk
Pat Nurre Accounting Clerk

Additional copies of this report may be obtained from:

Richard Gandoer, Treasurer

Mason Ciry School District

211 Norh East Sireet

Mason, OH 45040

Phone: (313) 398-3623

Email: gardnerr@mason, ki2.ohous
Web Papge: ww2.mason. k12 oh.us
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88 Fast Broad Street
P.O. Box 1140

Auditor of State Columbus, Ohio 43216-1140
Telephone  614-466-4514
Betty Montgomery P 400.282.0370

Facsimile  614-466-4490

MASON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

WARREN COUNTY

CLERK'S CERTIFICATION
This is a true and correct copy of the report which is required to be filed in the Office
of the Auditor of State pursuant to Section 117.26, Revised Code, and which is filed
in Columbus, Ohio.

desan Toubbitt

CLERK OF THE BUREAU

CERTIFIED
MARCH 16, 2004
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MASON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
WARREN COUNTY

SINGLE AUDIT
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